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Independent Auditors’ Report

To
The Members of
Axis Finance Limited

Report on the audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Axis Finance Limited (“the

~ Company”), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31, 2024, and the Statement of Profit
and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and Staternent
of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Ind AS financial statements, including a
summary of material accounting policies information and other explanatory information.

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013,
as amended, (“Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, its profit
including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then
ended.

Basis for Opinion

3.  We conducted our audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (“SAs”) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs
are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the ind AS Financial
Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI") together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements under the
provisions of the Act, and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfiled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the
Ind AS Financial Statements.

Key Audit Matters

4. Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements of the financial year ended March 31, 2024.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context. ’
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We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be
communicated in our report. We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditors’
responsibilities for the audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements section of our report, including
in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS
Financial Statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed
to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying Ind
AS Financial Statements.

Sr.
No

Key Audit Matter

How the Key Audit Matter was addressed
in our audit

Accuracy of recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosures of Impairment |
of Loans and Advances (Expected Credit Loss)

Ind AS 109: Financial Instruments (“Ind AS
109") requires the Company to provide for
impairment of its Loan & Advances and
Investments (“Financial Instruments”) using
the Expected Credit Losses (‘ECL")
approach. ECL involves an estimation of

probability-weighted loss on Financial
Instruments over their life, considering
reasonable and supportable information

about past events, current conditions, and
forecasts of future economic conditions
which could impact the credit quality of the

Company’'s loans and advances and
Investments.

In the process, a significant degree of
judgement has been applied by the
management for:

a) Defining qualitative/ guantitative

thresholds for ‘significant increase in
credit risk’ (“SICR”) and ‘default’
categorically for corporate portfolio,
wherein Company’s credit risk function
also segregates loans with specific risk
characteristics based on trigger events
identified using sufficient and credible
information available from internal
sources supplemented by external
data. Impairment allowance for these
exposures are reviewed and accounted
on a case by case basis.

b) Determining effect of less frequent past
events on future probability of default.

c) Grouping of borrowers based on
homogeneity by using appropriate
statistical techniques.

Our Audit Approach:

Our audit approach was a combination of
test of internal controls and substantive
procedures which included the following:

a) Evaluating the Company’s accounting
policies, as approved by the Board of
Directors, for impairment of Financial
Instruments and assessing compliance
with the policies in terms of Ind AS 109:
Financial instruments.

b) Obtained an understanding of the
modelling techniques / models adopted
by the Company including the key inputs
and assumptions including overlays.

c) Evaluated the reasonableness of the
management estimates by analysing the
underlying assumptions and testing of
controls around data extraction /
validation.

d) Assessed the criteria for staging of loans
based on their past-due status to check
compliance with requirement of Ind AS
109. Tested samples of performing
(stage 1) loans to assess whether any
SICR or loss indicators were present
requiring them to be classified under
Stage 2 or 3.

e) Assessed the additional considerations
applied by the management to conclude
that there is “Significant increase in
credit risk” or that event of “Default” has
occurred.
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d) Determining macro-economic factors
impacting credit quality of receivables.

e) Data inputs - The application of ECL
model requires inputs from several data
sources.

fy Tested the ECL model, including
assumptions, underlying computation
and computation of ECL provision
performed by the Company on sample
basis to assess the arithmetical accuracy
and compliance with requirements of Ind
- AS 109.

We also made management enquiries
with respect to the overlay quantum.

9)

Discussed with the management, the
approach, interpretation, systems and
controls implemented in relation to
probability of default and stage-wise
bifurcation of product-wise portfolios for
timely ascertainment of stress and early
warning signals.

Read and assessed the disclosures
included in the Ind AS financial
statements in respect of expected credit
losses with the requirements of Ind AS
107 Financial Instruments: Disclosure
(“Ind AS 107”) and Ind AS 109.

Infermation Technology (IT) System and

Controls

The Company’s key financial accounting
and reporting processes are highly
dependent on the automated controls over
the Company's information systems, such
that there exists a risk that gaps in the IT
general control environment could result in
a misstatement of the financial accounting
and reporting records. Accordingly, we
have considered user access management,
segregation of duties and controls over
system change over key financial
accounting and reporting systems, as a key
audit matter :

Our Audit Approach:

With the assistance of our IT specialists, we
obtained an understanding of the Company’s
IT applications, databases and operating
systems relevant to financial reporting and
the control environment.

Our audit approach was a combination of test
of internal controls and substantive
procedures on the areas of the IT
infrastructure, which majorly focused access
security (including controls over privileged
access), program change controls, database
management and network operations.

In particular, our activity included the
following:

General IT controls design, observation

and operation: '

> Understood the changes made in the IT
environment during the year and
ascertained its effect on the financial
statements controls and accounts.
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> Tested key controls operating over the
information technology in relation to
financial accounting and reporting
systems, including system access and
system change management, program
development and computer operations.

User access controls operation:

¥ Obtained management’s evaluation of
the access rights granted to applications
relevant to financial accounting and
reporting systems and tested resolution
of a sample of expectations.

> Further, we assessed the operating
effectiveness of controls over granting,
removal and appropriateness of access
rights.

Application controls:

> We tested the design and operating
effectiveness of automated controls
critical to flnanCIaI accounting and
reportlng

> For any identified deficiencies, tested the
design and operating effectiveness of
compensating controls and, where
necessary, extended the scope of our
substantive audit procedures.

> Qur tests also included testing of the
compensating controls or alternate
procedures to assess whether there
were any unaddressed IT risks that
would materiality impact the Ind AS
Financial Statements.

Information Other than the Ind AS Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report thereon

5.

The Company'’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Company’s Directors’ Report but does not include the
Ind AS Financial Statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS Financial Statements does not cover the other infofmation and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the Ind AS Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
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material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

Management's responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements

6.

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act, with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS Financial Statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income,
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under
section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the Ind AS Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do
SO.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Companys financial reportmg
process.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

9.

10.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Ind AS Financial Statements.’

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise profesorona! judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

10.1  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS Financial Statements,
" whether due to fraud or érror, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those

. risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstaternent resulting from fraud is higher than

for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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11.

12.

13.

10.2  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

10.3 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

10.4  Conclude on the appropriateness of the management’s use of the going concern basis of
' accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Cofmpany’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the Ind AS
Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a

going concern.

10.5 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Financial Statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the resuits of our work; and (ii)
to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with thern all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the Financial Statements of the current year and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

14.

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued. by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act and on the basis of such
checks of the books and records of the Company as we considered appropriate and according to
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the information and explanations given to us, we give in the “Annexure A”, a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. -

15. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

15.1  We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

15.2  In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the company
) so far as it appears from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in
the paragraph 16.6 below on reporting under Rule 11(g).

15.3 The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

15.4  In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS Financial Statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended.

15.5 On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

15.6  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference 1o Ind AS
FFinancial Statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
to our separate report in "Annexure B”. ‘

15.7  In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2024 has been
paid / provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of Section
197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

16. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us, we report as under:

16.1  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at March 31, 2024 on its
financial position in its Ind AS Financial Statements — Refer Note 34 to the Ind Aq Financiai
otatements

16.2 The Company did not have any Ion‘g—term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses;

16.3  There were no amounts which were requlred to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.
16.4
(a) The management has represented to us that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been advanced or’loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
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whether, directly or indirectly lend to or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and '

(c) Based on such audit procedures that we considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

The Board of Directors of the Company have not prop()sed‘ any dividend for the year, which
is subject to the approval of the members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used various
software for maintaining its books of account, which has the feature of recording audit trail
(edit log) facilities and is operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded
in the respective software(s), except in the case of two applications. In the instance of
Oracle, audit trail logs w.r.t. any modification in the masters related to banking details of
vendor's were not enabled, however as represented by the management the same has
been enabled post year.end. Further, the company was using Credence Software for its
Treasury operations, for the period April 1, 2023 to September 30, 2023, which we are made
to understand, did not support for enablement of audit trail feature. The company has
migrated its treasury operations to SAP w.e.f. October 1, 2023. Also, refer note 81 to the
ind AS financial statements.

For B. K. Khare & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registraticn No. 10510
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Shweta Singhal

Partner

Membership No. 414420
UDIN: 24414420BKASKC8958
Place: Mumbai

Date: April 18, 2024

‘Aniruddha Joshi
Partner
Membership Nec: 040852
UDIN: 24040852BKCCCR9776
Place: Mumbai

Date: April 18, 2024
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Annexure A referred to in the paragraph 14 to the Independent Auditors’ report of even date to the
members of Axis Finance Limited as of and for the year ended March 31, 2024 under “the heading
“Report on other Legal and Regulatory requirements”

(i) Inrespect of the Company’s Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible Assets
(a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars mcludmg quantitative
.details and situation of Property, Plant & Equipment. Co

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative
details and situation of Intangible Assets.

(b) The Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management at
reasonable intervals. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable having regard to
the size of the operations of the Company and no material discrepancies were noticed during
the verification. '

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the title deeds of the immovable property are held in the name
of the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Eqmpment (including Right of Use
assets) or mfanglble assets during the year.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, no proceedings have been initiated
or are pending against the company for holding any benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

(i) ' ‘ '
(a) The Company is primarily engaged in lending business. Accordingly, it does not hold any
inventories. Thus, paragraph 3(iii)(a) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees,
in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets.
Basis the information and explanation provided to us and basis our audit procedures
undertaken, we have not come across any difference between the information submitted
in the 'quarterly returns / statements filed by the company with such bariks or financial
institutions when compared with the books of account and other relevant information
provided by the Company.

(iii)

(a) The Compan’y is primarily engaged in lending activities and hence reporting under

paragraph 3(iii)(a) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) Considering that the Company is a Non — Banking Finance Company, the investments
made, security given and the terms and conditions of the grant of all loans and advances
in the nature of loans are not prima facie prejudicial to the Company’s interest. According
to information and explanat:ons provided to us, the Company has not provided any
gu']rantees during the year.
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(c) In respect of the loans given and advances in the nature of loans, the Company has
stipulated the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest. However given
the nature of business of the Company being a Non-Banking Finance Company, there
are some cases during the year and as at March 31, 2024 wherein the amounts were
overdue vis-a-vis stipulated terms.

(d) In respect of loans granted and advances in the nature of loans, provided by the
Company, the total amount overdue for more than ninety days as on March 31, 2024 is

as under:
No. of cases Principal fnterest overdue | Total  overdue | Remarks (if any)
amount (Rs in lakhs) (Rs in lakhs)
overdue®
(Rs in lakhs)
1,288 1 14,544.28 1,238.86 15,783.13

#excludes the amount written off

Further, basis discussions with the management we understand that the reasonable steps
have been taken by the Company for recovery of the principal and interest.

(e) The Company is engaged primarily in lending activities and hence reporting under
paragraph 3(iii)(e) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

() Basis the information and explanations provided to us, we did not come across loans or
advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any
terms or pericd of repayment. Thus, reporting under paragraph 3(iii)(f) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not granted any loans, made investments, provided guarantees or securities in
contravention of provisions of Section 185 of the Act. The Company has complied with the
provigions of Section 186(1) of the Act; the other provisions of Section 186 of the Act are not -
applicable to the Company.

(v) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any
deposit during the year and does not have any unclaimed deposits as at March 31, 2024 to
which the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Section 73 to
76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the Rules framed thereunder apply.
Accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3(v) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

(vi) The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under
Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried out by the
Company. Thus, the reportiig under paragraph 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company. ' ' o

(vii) In respect of Statutory dues:

(a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed'statutory’ dues,
including Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-
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tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, cess and any other statutory dues to the appropriate

authorities.

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Services Tax,

provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, duty of customs, duty of excise,
cess and any other material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2024, for a period
of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records, there are no statutory dues referred to in sub clause (a) that
have not been deposited on account of any dispute except for disputed income tax dues
as tabulated below:

Nature of

Name of the Amount Period to Forum where dispute
statute the dues (Rs) _ which the _is pending
' ' '~ amount
relates ,
Income Tax Act, | Income Tax 48,68,000 | Assessment | Commissioner of
1961 year2012-13 | Income Tax, Appeals
Income Tax Act, | Income Tax 16,34,521 | Assessment Commissioner of
1961 : year 2016-17 | Income Tax, Appeals
Income Tax Act, | Income Tax | 1,47,14,330 | Assessment Income Tax Appellate
1961 : C ‘ year 2016-17 | Tribunal (ITAT)
income Tax Act, | Income Tax | 5,15,34,370 | Assessment | Commissioner of
1961 year 2017-18 | Income Tax, Appeals
Incorme Tax Act, | Income Tax 924,560 | Assessment | Commissioner of
| 1961 Income Tax, Appeals

year 2018-19

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no transactions which
have not recorded in the books of account but have been surrendered cr disclosed as income
durmg the year in the tax assessments under the Inc‘ome tax Act, 1961.

(a)

(b)

()

(d)

(e)

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted
in repayment of loans or other borrowmgs or in the payment of interest thereon to any
lender during the year.

Basis the information and explanation provided to us, the Company has ndt been declared
a willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

According to the information and explanations given to us and to the best of our knowledge
and belief, in our opinion, term loans availed by the Company were applied during the year
for the purpose for which the loans were obtamed other than temporary deployment
pendmg apph(,atlon of proceeds. :

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised on
short-term basis do not seem to have been utilized during the year for long-term purposes.

The Company does not have any subsidiaries, associates, or joint ventures. Accordingly,
the provisions of the paragraph 3 (ix)(e) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.
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(i)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

() The Company does not have any subsidiaries, associates, or joint ventures. Accordingly,
the provisions of the paragraph 3(ix)(f) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under paragraph 3 (x)(a)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year and hence
reporting under paragraph 3 (x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) Based upon the audit procedures performed and according to the information and
explanations given by the management, there were 15 instances of fraud on the Company
by its customers amounting to Rs. 221.53 lakhs as disclosed in Note no. 52 to the Ind AS
financial statements. We did not come across any other instances of fraud by the
Company.

(b) During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 has been filed by secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT — 4 as prescribed under
Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(¢} We have taken into consideration the whistle blower complaints received by the Company
during the year while determining the nature, timing and extent of audit procedures.

The Company is riot a Nidhi Company and hence reportrng under paragraph 3(xii) oftre Order
is not applicable to the Company

According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with the
related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and the
details have been disclosed in the notes to the Ind AS flnan(:lal statements, as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

(a) In cur opinion the company has an adequate lnternal audlt system commensurate with the
" size and nature of its business.

(b) We have taken into consideration, the internal audit reports for the period under audit

issued to the Company till the date of Auditors’ Report for determmlng the nature, timing
and extent of audit procedures.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with them
as referred to in Section 192 of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3(xv) of the
Order'is not apphc.;.b!e to the Company.
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(xvi)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

(xx)

(a) The Company has registered as required, under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934 (2 of 1934).

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company holds a valid
Certificate of Registration (CoR).

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made
by the Reserve Bank of India and hence reporting under paragraph 3 (xvi)(c) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(d) There is no Core Investment Company as a part of the Group, hence, the requirement to
report on paragraph 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not incurred any cash losses during the
financial year covered by our audit and the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, the
reporting under paragraph 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial
ratios (as disclosed in Ind-AS Financial Statements), ageing and expected dates of realisation
of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the
financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and
based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to
our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of
the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of
Balance Sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the Balance Sheet
date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the company.
We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and
we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period
of one year from the Balance Sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when
they fall due.

(a) The Company has fully spent the required amount towards Corporate Social Responsibility
(CSR) and there is no unspent CSR amount on account of ongoing projects or other than
ongoing projects for the year requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VI to the
Act or special account in compliance with the provision of sub-section (6) of section 135 of
the Act.

(b) There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects, that are required to be
transferred to a special account in compliance of provision of sub section (6) of section 135
of the Act. This matter has been disclosed in Note 29 to the Ind AS Financial Statements.
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(xxi)

B. K. Khare & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Acéording to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, there are no subsidiaries / associates / joint ventures of the
Company and hence the paragraph 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable.

For Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 302049E

Shweta Singhal

Partner

Membership No. 414420 .
UDIN: 24414420BKASKC8958
Place: Mumbai

Date: April 18, 2024

For B. K. Khare & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 105102W

4.

Aniruddha Joshi
Partner
Membership No: 040852
UDIN: 24040852BKCCCR9776
Place: Mumbai

Date: April 18, 2024
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ Report
[Referred to in paragraph 15.6 under ‘Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of
our report of even date]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements under Clause (i)
of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements of Axis
Finance Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS
Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us the Company
has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and
such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024

ased on the criteria for internal financial control over financial reporting established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (“the Guidance Note”) issued by the lnstltute of Chartered
Accountants of India (‘ICAI’).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establlshmg and mamtammg internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAl. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operatmg effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business
including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act,
to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls and both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk, The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company'’s internal financial controls system with reference to financial
statements.

Meaning of internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

A company’s internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company’s internal financial control with reference to financial statements m(‘Iudes those
policies and procedures that:
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the Company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on
the fmanc:lal statements. .

Inherent lentatlons of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial
statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference te financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internat financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial stalements may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.

For Singhi & Co. ' For B. K. Khare & Co.

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 302049E _Firm Registration No. 105102W

Shweta Singhal Aniruddha Joshi

Partner ‘ Partner

Membership No. 414420 pt Membership No 040852
UDIN: 2441442OBKA6KC8958 ' UDIN: 24040852BKCCCR9776
‘Place: Mumbai - ' " Place: Mumbai '

Date: April 18, 2024 Date: April 18, 2024



AXIS FINANCE LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024

(All amounts are in rupees lakhs, except per share data and as stated otherwise)

Particulars Note As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
ASSETS
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 4 60,703.63 75,516.06
Receivables 5
a) Trade Receivables 759.27 13.88
b) Other Receivables - : -
Loans 6 30,35,677.49 22,00,624.96
Investments 7 1,54,816.28 90,932.59
Other financial assets 8 17,368.69 13,630.24
Sub-total-Financial Assets 32,69,325.36 23,80,717.73
Non-Financial Assets
Current Tax Assets (net) 9 5,018.65 4,427.73
Deferred Tax Assets (net) 9 10,265.21 7,972.24
Property, plant and equipment 10 813.28 612.89
Intangible assets under development 11 102.45 13.44
Other Intangible Assets 11 1,391.92 1,375.47
Right-of-use assets 2,113.36 1,584.80
Other non-financial assets 12 1,178.75 983.37
Sub-total-Non-Financial Assets 20,883.62 16,969.94
Total - Assets 32,90,208.98 23,97,687.67
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Financial Liabilities
Payables 13
i) Trade Payables
a) total outstanding dues to micro and small enterprises - -
b} total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 64.31 208.49
ii) Other Payables
a) total outstanding dues to micro and small enterprises 274.38 269.47
b) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 4,491.89 3,381.30
Debt securities 14 12,09,649.26 7,96,355.45
Borrowings (Other than debt securities) 15 13,40,752.19 10,50,807.34
Subordinated Liabilities 16 2,43,907.32 1,53,020.77
Lease Liabilities 2,132.58 1,658.52
Other financial liabilities 17 75,848.97 70,668.81
Sub-total-Financial Liabilities 28,77,120.90 20,76,370.15
Non-Financial liabilities
Current tax liabilities (net) 9 1,106.38 326.90
Provisions 18 3,713.90 2,928.78
Other non-financial liabilities 19 1,403.29 904.75
Sub-total-Non-Financial Liabilities 6,223.57 4,160.43
Total-liabilities 28,83,344.47 20,80,530.58
EQUITY
Equity share capital 20 62,706.38 59,081.39
Other equity 21 3,44,158.13 2,58,075.70
Total - Equity 4,06,864.51 3,17,157.09
Total - Liabilities and Equity 32,90,208.98 23,97,687.67
Material accounting policy information and notes to the financial statements 2-85

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our attached report of even date
For Singhi & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Partner
Membership No.: 414420
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: April 18, 2024

For B.K.Khare & Co.
Charjgred Accountants

Membership No.: 040852
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: April 18, 2024

For gnd on behalf of the board of Axis Finance Limited

Amitabh Chaudhry
Chairman
DIN No: 00531120

Bipin Kumar Saraf
Managing Director
DIN No: 06416744

Amith R/er
Chief Financial Officer

Membership No: 51849

apud e Wowor

Rajneesh Kumar

Company Secretary
Membership No: A31230
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: April 18, 2024



AXIS FINANCE LIMITED

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024

{All amounts are in rupees lakhs, except per share data and as stated otherwise)

Particulars Note For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Revenue from operations
Interest Income 22 2,97,670.41 2,13,624.87
Fees and commission Income 23 5,036.32 4,325.83
Net gain on fair value changes 24 3,851.22 575.39
Net gain/(loss) on derecognition of financial instruments under amortised cost 8,855.40 14,132.15
category
Total Revenue from operations 3,15,413.35 2,32,658.24
Other Income - -
Total income 3,15,413.35 2,32,658.24
Expenses
Finance Costs 25 1,82,973.07 1,19,638.64
Impairment on financial instruments 26 15,023.33 6,534.16
Employee benefits expenses 27 24,518.13 19,250.00
Depreciation, amortization and impairment 28 2,039.40 1,556.74
Others expenses 29 11,404.48 8,336.99
Total expenses 2,35,958.41 1,55,316.53
Profit before exceptional items and tax 79,454.94 77,341.71
Exceptional items - -
Profit before taxes 79,454.94 77,341.71
Tax expenses
- Current Tax 21,994.68 18,638.61
- Deferred Tax {2,259.81) 792.95
Profit for the year 59,720.07 57,910.15
Other Comprehensive income
{A) Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss
-Re-measurements of net defined benefit plans {131.73) 190.84
-Income tax impact (33.15) 48.03
Sub-total {A) (98.58) 142.81
{B) Items that will be reclassified to profit and loss
-Fair value changes on derivative designated as cash flow hedge - {6.39)
-Income tax impact - (1.61)
Sub-total (B) - (4.78)
Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) {A+B) (98.58) 138.03
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 59,621.49 58,048.18
Paid-up Equity share capital (Face Value of X 10 each) 62,706.38 59,081.39
Earning per equity share
Basic (X)) 35 9.93 10.12
Diluted {X) 35 9.93 10.12
Material accounting policy information and notes to the financial statements 2-85

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our attached report of even date
For Singhi & Co.

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No. 302049E

5

Shweta Singhal

Partner

Membership No.: 414420
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: April 18, 2024

For B.K.Khare & Co.

Aniruddha fJoshi

Partner

Membership No.: 040852
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: April 18, 2024

and on behalf of the board of Axis Finance Limited

Amitabh.ﬁhgudhry e
Chairman

DIN No: 00531120

Bipin Kumar Saraf
Managing Director
DI No: 06416744

Amith R((;r
Chief Financial Officer
CMA Membership No: 51849

ol oo

Rajneesh Kumar

Company Secretary
Membership No: A31230
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: April 18, 2024



AXIS FINANCE LIMITED

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2024

(All amounts are in rupees lakhs, except per share data and as stated otherwise)

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

A. Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before tax

Adjustments for:

Depreciation, amortization and impairment (other than right-of-use assets)
Depreciation on right-of-use assets

Net gain on fair value changes

Net gain/(loss) on derecognition of financial instruments under amortised cost category
Impairment on financial instruments

Profit on sale of Property, Plant and Equipment

Loss on write off of Property, Plant and Equipment
Employee Stock Option

Interest on Lease deposit

Provision for expenses

Provision for Employee Benefit expense

Interest income from investments {at amortised cost)
Interest income from investments (FVTPL)

Operating profit before working capital changes
Movement in working capital:

Decrease/(increase) in Bank Deposits
Decrease/(increase) in Derivative financial instruments
Decrease/(increase) in Trade Receivables
Decrease/(increase) in Loans

Decrease/(increase) in Other financial assets
Decrease/(increase) in Right-of-use assets
Decrease/(increase) in Other non-financial assets
(Decrease)/increase in Lease Liabilities
{Decrease)/increase in Trade Payables
(Decrease)/increase in Other financial liabilities
{Decrease)/increase in Provisions
(Decrease)/increase in Other non-financial liabilities
Cash generated from operations

Income tax paid
Net cash flow from operating activities (A)

B. Cash flow from investing activities
interest income from investments (at amortised cost)
Interest income from investments (FVTPL)
Purchase for Intangibles

Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment

Sale of Intangibles

Purchase of Property, plant and equipment
Sale of investment at Amortised Cost
Purchase of investment at Amortised Cost
Proceeds from sale of investment at FVTPL
Purchase of investment at FVTPL

Net cash flow from investing activities(B)

C. Cash flow from financing activities

Increase/(decrease) in Debt securities

Increase/(decrease) in Borrowings (Other than debt securities)
Increase/{decrease) in Subordinated Liabilities

Proceeds from issue of Equity Shares (net of share issue expenses)
Payment towards Lease Liability

Net cash flow from financing activities(C)

79,454.94 77,341.71
953.86 767.60
1,085.54 787.09
(3,851.22) (575.39)
8,954.67 12,174.33
15,023.33 6,534.16
(5.19) -
0.86 -
. 59.54
(54.04) (35.95)
1,115.49 1,761.10
785.05 942.30
(7,897.53) (5,978.96)
(1,887.54) (1,658.67)
93,678.22 92,118.86
- 183.13
- 407.28
(745.39) 588.09
(8,49,883.68) (5,98,786.69)
(12,639.08) (24,693.16)
(1,614.10) 85.25
(195.39) 54.23
1,447.55 (243.19)
(337.27) 680.95
6,488.75 42,926.13
(1,247.15) (1,570.27)
498.60 (65.80)

(7,64,548.93)

{4,88,315.19)

(21,806.12)

(21,896.67)

{7,86,355.05)

(5,10,211.86)

7,607.01 8,117.62
1,899.45 1,609.26
(748.89) (384.99)
34.54 -

- 18.00

(541.09) (415.48)
98,193.17 20,791.00
{1,59,689.58) (38,329.83)
3,05,798.83 2,91,295.57
(3,04,248.47) (2,97,342.14)
(51,695.03) (14,640.99)
4,13,293.82 (28,857.75)
2,89,944.85 5,01,350.75
90,886.55 54,064.61
30,085.92 39,936.62
(973.49) (710.84)

8,23,237.65

5,65,783.39

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and equivalents(A+B+C) (14,812.43) 40,930.53
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 75,516.06 34,585.53
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 60,703.63 75,516.06
Cash - -
Balance with banks 60,703.63 45,536.59
Investment in highly liquid securities - 29,979.47
60,703.63 75,516.06

Clt}




AXIS FINANCE-LIMITED
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2024

(All amounts are in rupees lakhs, except per share data and as stated otherwise)

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

Additional disclosure pursuant to IND AS 7

Opening balance of Debt Securities, borrowings (other than debt securities) and
subordinated liabilities including interest accrued

20,00,183.56

14,73,626.02

Cash flows (net)*

7,94,125.21

5,26,557.54

Closing balance of Debt Securities, borrowings (other than debt securities) and subordinated
liabilities

27,94,308.77

20,00,183.56

*Cash flows (net} includes cash flows and accruals
1. The movement in lease liabilities have been disclosed in Note : 39

2. Net cash generated from operating activity is determined after adjusting the following:

Operational cash flows from interest

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Interest paid 1,76,330.50 1,21,778.02
Interest received 3,09,706.96 - 2,06,538.73

3. The above statement of cash flow has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in ind AS 7 Statement of Cash Flows.

4. Purchase of PPE represents additions to property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets adjusted for movement of (a) capital-work-in-
progress for property, plant and equipment and (b) intangible assets under development during the year.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our attached report of even date
For Singhi & Co.

Chartered Accountants

ICA! Firm Registration No. 302049E

For and on behalf of the board of Axis Finance Limited

/

{

Amitabh Cha
Chairman
DIN No: 00531120

g

Bipin Kumar Saraf
Managing Director
DIN No: 06416744

o

R
Shweta Singhal

Partner

Membership No.: 414420
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: April 18, 2024

For B.K.Khare & Co.
Chartered Accountants

A
Amithvlyer
Chief Financial Officer
CMA Membership No: 51849

qw % NV
Rajnegsh Kumar
Company Secretary
Membership No: A31230
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: April 18, 2024

Membership No.: 040852
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: April 18, 2024




AXIS FINANCE LIMITED

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2024

(All amounts are in rupees lakhs, except per share data and as stated otherwise)

1. Equity Share Capital

Particulars Balance at the| Changes in Restated Changes in |Balance at the
beginning of | Equity Share balance at | equity share end of the
the year Capital due the capital during year
to prior beginning the year
period errors of the
current
reporting
period
As at March 31, 2023 53,851.25 - - 5,230.14 59,081.39
As at March 31, 2024 59,081.39 - - 3,624.99 62,706.38
1A. Other equity
Particulars Reserves and Surplus Other Comprehensive Total
Income (OCI)
Statutory Securities Retained General Deemed [Remeasureme| Cash Flow
Reserve Premium Earnings Reserves Capital nt of Post Hedge
Contribution | Employment Reserve
Benefit
Obligations
Balance as at April 1, 2022 31,984.00 62,535.64 69,592.38 33.04 1,150.31 (38.65) 4.78 | 1,65,261.50
Profit for the year (a) - - 57,910.15 - - - - 57,910.15
items that will not be reclassified to - - - - - 142.81 - 142.81
profit and loss {b)
Items that will be reclassified to profit and - - - - B - (4.78) {4.78)
loss (¢}
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - - 57,910.15 - - 142.81 (4.78) 58,048.18
{a+b+c)
Securities Premium received on issue of - 34,713.04 - - - - - 34,713.04
shares
Utilization during the year against share - (6.56) - - - - - (6.56)
issue expense
Transfer to/from retained earnings 11,583.00 - (11,583.00) - - - - -
Employee Stock Option - - - - 59.54 - - 59.54
Balance as at March 31, 2023 43,567.00 97,242.12 | 1,15,919.53 33.04 1,209.85 104.16 - 2,58,075.70
Profit for the year (a) - - 59,720.07 - - 59,720.07
ltems that will not be reclassified to - - - - (98.58) - (98.58)
profit and loss (b}
Total Comprehensive income for the year - - 59,720.07 - - {98.58) - 59,621.49
(a+b+c)
Securities Premium received on issue of - 26,462.44 - - B - - 26,462.44
shares
Utilization during the year against share - (1.50) - - - - - {(1.50)
issue expense
Transfer to/from retained earnings 11,945.00 - (11,945.00) - - - - -
Employee Stock Option - - - - - - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 55,512.00 | 1,23,703.06 | 1,63,694.60 33.04 1,209.85 5.58 - 3,44,158.13
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
For Singhi & Co. For and on behalf of the board of Axis Finance Limited
Chartered Accountants
|CAI Firm Registration No. 302049E
¢
{ \\‘“"--.... ........... P
Shweta Singhal Amitabh Chaudhry
Partner Chairman
Membership No.: 414420 DIN No: 00531120
Place of Signature: Mumbai

Date: April 18, 2024

For B.K.Khare & Co.
ed Accountants
m Registration No.105102W

-

Aniruddhb Joshi
Partner
Membership No.: 040852
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: Aprii 18, 2024

Bipin Kumar Saraf
Managing Director
DIN No: 06416744
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Amith lyer

Chief Financial Officer
CMA Membership No: 51849

Rajnedsh Kumar

Company Secretary
Membership No: A31230
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: April 18, 2024
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AXIS FINANCE LIMITED
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in rupees lakhs, except per share data and as stated otherwise)

2. Corporate information
Axis Finance Limited is a public Company domiciled in India and incorporated under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013. The Company is a Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Non-Banking Financial
Company (‘NBFC’) as defined under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India {‘RBI’) Act, 1934 with effect
from September 12, 2011, holding Certificate of Registration No “N-13.02001".

The Company is mainly engaged in the business of financing activities. The Company is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Axis Bank Ltd. The Company’s registered office is at Ground floor, Axis House, C-2 Wadia
International Centre, P.B. Marg, Worli, Mumbai — 400025. Company’s Debt securities are listed at BSE
Limited.

2.1. Statement of Compliance, Basis of Preparation and Presentation of the Financial Statements

(i) Statement of Compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards ('Ind AS') as
notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time, to
be read with Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) and relevant amendments rules issued
thereafter.

Any directions issued by the RBI or other regulators are implemented as and when they become
applicable. Further, the Company has complied with ali the directions related to Implementation of Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed for Non-Banking Financial Companies (NBFCs) in accordance with the RBI
notification no. RBI/2019-20/170 DOR NBFC).CC.PD. N0.109/22.10.106/2019-20 dated March 13, 2020. In
addition, the guidance notes/announcements issued by the institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(ICAI) are also applied.

These Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee at it’s meeting held on April 17, 2024 and were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors
of the Company at it's meeting held on April 18, 2024.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly-issued accounting standard is
initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy
hitherto in use.

During the year 2023 — 24, the Company has adopted the amendments to Ind AS 1 notified vide MCA
notification dated March 31, 2023, with respect to disclosure of accounting policies. The amendments
replace all instances of the term ‘significant accounting policies’ with ‘material accounting policy
information’. Accounting policy information is material if, when considered together with other
information included in an entity’s financial statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general-purpose financial statements make on the basis of those
financial statements. Accounting policies which summarize the requirements of Ind ASs and do not include
any entity specific information, do not represent material accounting policy information hence not
disclosed.

Material accounting policy information has been identified based on the following criteria provided under
Ind AS 1:

aterial change to the information in the financial statements; or
/‘chose the accounting policy from one or more options permitted by Ind AS(s); or




AXIS FINANCE LIMITED
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
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amounts are in rupees lakhs, except per share data and as stated otherwise)

(c) The accounting policy was developed in accordance with Ind AS 8 in the absence of an Ind AS that
specifically applies; or

(d) The accounting policy relates to an area for which an entity is required to make significant judgements
or assumptions in applying an accounting policy, and the entity discloses those judgements or
assumptions in accordance with para 122 and 125; or

(e) The accounting required for them is complex and users of the entity’s financial statements would
otherwise not understand those material transactions, other events or conditions — such a situation
could arise-if an entity applies more than one Ind AS to a class of material transactions.

(ii) Basis of Preparation
The Financial Statements have been prepared and presented on the going concern basis and at
historical cost, except for the following which have been measured at fair value:

- Certain financial assets and liabilities at fair value;

- Employee’s Defined benefit plans-plan assets as per actuarial valuation; and
- Derivative Financial Instruments

- Share Based payments.

(iii) Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is the functional currency of the Company
and the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates. Except as
otherwise indicated, financial information presented in Indian rupees has been rounded to the nearest
lakhs. Transactions and balances with values below the rounding off norm adopted by the Company have
been reflected as “0” in the relevant notes to these financial statements.

(iv) Presentation and Disclosures of the financial statements

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Profit and Loss are presented
in the format prescribed under Division Hl of Schedule Iil of the Act, as amended from time to time, for
NBFCs that are required to comply with Ind AS. The Statement of Cash Flows has been presented as per
the requirements of Ind AS 7 Statement of Cash Flows.

An analysis regarding recovery or settlement within 12 months after the reporting date {(current) and more
than 12 months after the reporting date (non—current) is presented in Note 32.

Use of Estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make
estimates, judgements and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities (including contingent liabilities) and disclosures as of the date of
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses for the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from these estimates. Accounting estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis and could change from period to period. Appropriate changes in estimates
are recognized in the periods in which the Company becomes aware of the changes in circumstances
surrounding the estimates. Any revisions to accounting estimates are recognized prospectively in the
period in which the estimate is revised and future periods.

The critical estimates and judgements that have significant impact on the carrying amount of the assets
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3. Material accounting policy information

3.1 Recognition of Revenue
Revenue (other than for those items to which Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments are applicable) is measured
at fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Ind AS 115 Revenue from contracts with
customers outlines a single comprehensive model of accounting for revenue arising from contracts with
customers and supersedes current revenue recognition guidance found within Ind AS.

i. InterestIncome

Interest income on a financial asset at amortised cost is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into
account the amount outstanding and the effective interest rate (‘EIR’). The EIR is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash flows of the financial asset through the expected life of the financial asset
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount of the financial instrument. The
internal rate of return on financial asset after netting off the fees received and cost incurred approximates
the effective interest rate method of return for the financial asset. The future cash flows are estimated
taking into account all the contractual terms of the instrument.

The interest income is calculated by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of non-credit impaired
financial assets (i.e. at the amortised cost of the financial asset before adjusting for any expected credit
loss allowance).

The Company calculates interest income by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of financial
assets other than credit-impaired assets. in case of credit-impaired financial assets regarded as ‘Stage 3,
basis the past experience the Company believes that interest amount is not recoverable from the credit
impaired assets. Hence the Company has opted to recognize the same at the time of actual recovery, if
any. If financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, the Company reverts to calculating interest income on a
gross basis. Delayed payment interest (penal interest and the like) levied on customers for delay in
repayments/ non-payment of contractual cashflows is recognised on realisation.

For credit-impaired financial assets the interest income is calculated by applying the EiR to the amortised
cost of the credit-impaired financial assets (i.e. the gross carrying amount less the allowance for ECLs).

ii. Dividend income
Dividend income {including from FVOCI investments) is recognized when the Company’s right to receive
the payment is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow
to the entity and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

iii. Fees and Commission Income
Fees and commission income other than those that are integral part of EIR are recognized when the
company satisfies the performance obligation over time and as the related services are performed.

iv. Net gain on Fair value changes
Any differences between the fair values of financial assets classified as FVTPL held by the Company on the
balance sheet date is recognised as an unrealised gain / loss. Any realised gain or loss on sale of financial
instruments measured at FVTPL is recognized in net gain / loss on fair value changes. Similarly, any
differences between the fair values of financial assets classified as fair value through other comprehensive

income are disclosed in the OCl. However, net gain / loss on derecognition of financial instruments
Profit.,
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V.

vi.

vii.

Income from Direct assignment

Gains arising out of direct assignment transactions comprise the difference between the interest on the
loan portfolio and the applicable rate at which the direct assignment is entered into with the assignee, also
known as the right of Excess Interest Spread (EIS). The future EIS basis the expected cash flows on the
execution of the transaction, discounted at the applicable rate entered into with the assignee is recorded
upfront in the statement of profit and loss.

Upfront servicers fees booked on direct assignment

Servicer fees receivable for servicing loan contracts under direct assignment are discounted at the
applicable rate entered into with the assignee and recognized upfront in the balance sheet and amortized
on an actual cash flow basis over the contractual terms.

Other Operating Income
The Company recognises income on recoveries of financial assets written off on realisation or when the
right to receive the same without any uncertainties of recovery is established.

Finance Costs

Finance costs include interest expense computed by applying the effective interest rate on respective
financial instruments measured at amortized cost. Financial instruments include bank term loans, non-
convertible debentures, commercial papers, subordinated debts and exchange differences arising from
foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost. .
Finance costs are charged to the Statement of profit and loss.

. Employee Benefits

(A) Short-term employee benefits

Liabilities for salaries and wages, including non-monetary benefits in respect of employees’ services up to
the end of the reporting period, are recognized as liabilities (and expenses) and are measured at the
amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled.

The Company recognizes a liability, and records an expense for bonuses {including performance-linked
bonuses) where contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has created a constructive
obligation.

{B) Defined Contribution Plan

Retirement benefits in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company is
statutorily required to contribute a specified portion of the basic salary of an employee to a provident fund
as part of retirement benefits to its employees. The contributions are charged to the Statement of profit
and loss of the year when the contributions to the respective funds are due. There are no obligations other
than the contribution payable to the provident fund.

(C) Defined Benefit Plan
The Company provides for the gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering all employees. The
Company accounts for liability of future gratuity benefits based on an external actuarial valuation on
projected unit credit method carried out for assessing liability as at the reporting date. Gratuity is funded
with an approved trust.

In respect of Gratuity being post-retirement benefits, remeasurements, comprising actuarial gains and
losses, the effect of the changes to the asset ceiling, (if applicable) and the return on plan assets (excluding

- et interest) are reflected immediately in the Balance Sheet with a charge or credit recognized |n omeg ,

i e lncome in the period in which they occur.
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Re-measurement recognized in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained earnings,
and will not be reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(D} Share based payments Transactions

The Parent Bank (Axis Bank Ltd.) issues stock options to certain select employees of the Company. These
transactions are recognized as equity-settled share based payment transactions. The stock compensation
expense is determined based on grant date fair value of options and the parent banks estimate of options
that will eventually vest and is recognized on a straight line basis over the vesting period in the Statement
of Profit and Loss.

For options granted till FY 2020, corresponding impact is given to Other Equity as “Deemed Capital
Contribution” as the cost was not recovered by the parent bank.

However, for the options granted post FY 2020 (with effect from 1 July 2021), the share of the company’s
capital contribution reimbursed to the Bank is recorded as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss under
Share based payments to employees in Employee benefits expenses.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits

and short-term liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and financial liability
or equity instrument of another entity. Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when
Company becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Date of recognition and initial measurement

All financial instruments are recognized initially at fair value. However, in the case of financial instruments
not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of
the financial instruments are added to the fair value. Purchases or sales of financial instruments that
require delivery of assets / liabilities within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the
market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company
commits to purchase or sell the asset / liabilities.

Initial recognition, classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Based on the Business Model, the contractual characteristics of the financial assets and specific elections
where appropriate, the financial assets are classified into one of the three categories for measurement
and income recognition:

-Amortized Cost (AC)

-Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

-Fair value through profit and loss {FVTPL)

Financial asset is carried at amortized cost,

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both the following conditions :

a) The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the financial assets in
order to collect the contractual cash flows; and

b) The contractua! terms of the financial asset gnve rise on specific dates to cash flows that are soIer
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After initial measurement and based on the assessment of the business model as asset held to collect
contractual cash flows and SPPI, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
effective interest rate (‘EIR’) method. Interest income and impairment expenses are recognised in
statement of profit and loss. Iinterest income from these financial assets is included in finance income
using the EIR method. Any gain and loss on derecognition is also recognised in statement of profit and loss.

The EIR method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial instrument and of allocating
interest over the relevant period. The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash flows
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of the EIR, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Further other things remain the same (as in (a) and (b) above), if the financial asset is held within a
business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling the
financial assets, such asset/s are classified as held at FVOCI.

Financial assets included within the FVOCI category are measured subsequently at each reporting date at
fair value. Interest income and impairment loss are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Fair
value movements on subsequent measurement are recognised in the OCI.

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss

In case of a financial asset that does not meet both the above conditions, it is classified as FVTPL.

Financial assets included within the FVTPL category are measured subsequently at each reporting date at
fair value. Net gain or loss, including interest and other income are recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

a) Business Model (BM) Assessment
In order to arrive at the appropriate Business Model, the following factors are considered by the
Company.
-How the performance of the business model {including the financial assets in that business model)
are evaluated and reported to key management personnel within the Company.
-The risks that affect the performance of the business mode! (and the financial assets in it) and how
those risks are managed.

Changes in Business Model

The Company periodically reviews and updates the existing business model for its portfolio as long as
these changes are expected to be infrequent, significant to the entity's operations, and demonstrable
to external parties.

b) Solely Payments of Principal and Interest (SPPI) Test

Contractual Cash Flow Assessment
To determine whether a financial asset is measured at either amortized cost or FVOCI, the Company
has considered whether the cash-flows from the financial asset are solely for the payments of principal
and interest (“SPPI").

For the purpose of Ind AS 109, principal and interest are defined as follows:
-Principal is the fair value of the financial asset at initial recognition
-Interest is consideration for:

-The time value of money

-Credit risk associated with the principal amount
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-In addition, interest may also include consideration for other basic lending risks such as liquidity risk
and costs of holding the asset (e.g. administrative costs)
-Interest may include a profit margin that is consistent with a basic lending arrangement

If the contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding then the SPPI criteria is met.

The Company classifies its financial assets into the following four categories:

-Debt instruments at amortized cost

-Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

-Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
-Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

3.3.3 Initial measurement, classification and subsequent measurement of Financial Liabilities and Equity
Instruments

The Company classifies these instruments as financial liabilities or equity instruments in accordance with
the substance of the contractual terms of the instruments.

Equity

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the face value
and proceeds received in excess of the face value are recognised as securities premium.

Financial liabilities

The Company's borrowings include bonds, commercial paper, borrowings from banks, etc. Debt securities
issued, subordinated liabilities and other borrowings are initially measured at fair value less directly
attributable transaction costs and subsequently measured at their amortised cost using the EIR method.

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement of financial liability is based on their classification.
The Company’s most of the Financial Liabilities are measured initially and subsequently measured at
amortised cost.

Undrawn loan commitments are not recorded in the balance sheet. However, these financial instruments
are in the scope of expected credit loss {‘ECL’) calculation

3.3.4 De-recognition of Financial Assets and Liabilities

a) De-recognition of Financial Assets

A financial asset is derecognized only when

-The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or

-Retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual
obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the company has transferred an asset, the company evaluates whether it has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is
derecognized. Where the company has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of
the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognized.

IS
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control of the financial asset. Where the company retains the control of the financial asset, the asset is
continued to be recognized to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset.

b) De-recognition of Financial Liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

3.3.5 Reclassification of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, apart from the exceptional
circumstances in which the Company acquires, disposes of, or terminates a business line or in the period
the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets. The classification and
measurement requirements related to the new category apply prospectively from the first day of the first
reporting period following the changes in the business model that results in reclassification.

Reclassifications are expected to be very infrequent. Such changes must be determined by the Company's
senior management as a result of external or internal changes and must be significant to the Company's
operations and demonstrable to external parties.

Further re- classification is not allowed in following cases;
-Investments in equity instruments irrevocably designated as at FVOC! cannot be reclassified.
-Reclassification of financial liabilities.

3.3.6 Impairment of Financial Assets
The Company records allowance for expected credit losses (ECL) for all loans and debt investments,
together with loan commitments to customers.
The ECL allowance is based on the credit losses expected to arise over the life of the asset, unless there
has been no significant increase in credit risk since origination, in which case the allowance is based on the
12 months’ expected credit loss. The 12 month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from
default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
At the end of each reporting period, the Company performs an assessment of whether the loan’s /
investment’s credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition by considering the change in the
risk of default occurring over the remaining life of the asset. This includes both quantitative and qualitative
information and analysis based on a provision matrix which takes into account the Company’s historical
credit loss experience, current economic condition, forward looking information and scenario analysis.

The expected credit loss is a product of Exposure at Default (EAD), Probability of Default (PD) and Loss
given default (LGD). The Company has devised an internal model to evaluate the PD and LGD based on the
parameters set out in Ind AS 109. Accordingly, the financial assets have been segmented into three stages
based on their risk profiles. The three stages reflect the general pattern of credit deterioration of a
financial asset.

The company categorizes financial assets at the reporting date into stages based on the days past due
(DPD) status as under:

- Stage 1: 0 to 30 days past due

- Stage 2: 31 to 60 days past due and 61 to 90 days past due
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Probability of Default (PD): It is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon. in order
to estimate the PDs, studies on defaults available in public domain and experience of the Parent (Axis Bank
Limited) have been taken into account.

Exposure at Default (EAD): EAD is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date, taking into account
expected changes in the exposure after the reporting date, including repayment of principal and interest,
whether contractually scheduled or otherwise and expected drawdown on committed loan facilities and
accrued interest from missed payments. A credit conversion factor of 10% is applied for expected
drawdown on committed loan facilities.

Loss Given Default (LGD): LGD is an estimate of the loss arising in case where a default occurs. It is based
on the difference between the contractual cash flows due and those that the Company would expect to
receive, including from the realization of any security.

Based on the above, the Company categorizes its loans into Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3 as under:

Stage 1: When loans are first recognized, the Company recognises an allowance based on 12 months’
expected credit loss.

Stage 2: When a loan has shown significant increase in credit risk since origination, the Company records
an allowance for the life time expected credit loss.

Stage 3: When a loan is credit impaired, the Company records an allowance for the life time expected
credit loss.

Credit — impaired Financial Assets

A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events, that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset, have occurred. Credit-impaired financial assets are
referred to as Stage 3 assets. Evidence of credit-impairment includes observable data about the following
events:

» Significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

» A breach of contract such as a default or past due event;

» The lender of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s financial
difficulty, having granted to the borrower a concession that the lender would not otherwise consider;

¢ The disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties; or

* The purchase of a financial asset at a deep discount that reflects the incurred credit losses.

It may not be possible to identify a single discrete event, instead, the combined effect of several events
may have caused financial assets to become credit-impaired. The Company assesses whether debt
instruments which are financial assets measured at amortized cost or FVTOCI, are credit-impaired at each
reporting date. To assess if corporate debt instruments are credit impaired, the Company considers
factors, such as bond yields, credit ratings and the ability of the borrower to raise funding.

A loan is considered credit-impaired when a concession is granted to the borrower due to a deterioration
in the borrower’s financial condition, unless there is evidence that, as a result of granting the concession,
the risk of not receiving the contractual cash flows has reduced significantly and there are no other
indicators of impairment. For financial assets, where concessions are contemplated but not granted, the
asset is deemed credit-impaired when there is observable evidence of credit-impairment, including
meeting the definition of default. The definition of default includes unlikeliness to pay indicators and a
back-stop, if amounts are overdue for 90 days or more

Significant Increase in Credit Risk
The Company monitors all financial assets, issued irrevocable loan commitments and financial guarantee
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Company will measure the loss allowance based on lifetime rather than 12-month ECL. The Company’s
accounting policy is not to use the practical expedient that the financial assets with ‘low’ credit risk at the
reporting date are deemed not to have had a significant increase in credit risk. As a result, the Company
monitors all financial assets, issued irrevocable loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts that
are subject to impairment for significant increase in credit risk. In assessing whether the credit risk on a
financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company compares the risk of
a default occurring on the financial instrument at the reporting date based on the remaining maturity of
the instrument with the risk of a default occurring that was anticipated for the remaining maturity at the
current reporting date when the financial instrument was first recognized. In making this assessment, the
Company considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable, and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking information, that is available without undue cost or
effort, based on the Company’s historical experience and expert credit assessment.

Given that a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition is a relative measure, a given change,
in absolute terms, in the probability of default (PD) will be more significant for a financial instrument with
a lower initial PD than compared to a financial instrument with a higher PD.

ECL is calculated as under:

Stage 1: The Company calculates the 12 months’ ECL based on the expectation of a default occurring
within 12 months from the reporting date. The expected 12-month PD is applied to the EAD and multiplied
by the expected LGD and discounted at the EIR.

Stage 2: When a loan has shown significant increase in credit risk since origination, the Company records
an allowance for life time expected credit loss as above, but the PD and LGD is estimated over the lifetime
of the loan.

Stage 3: For loans considered credit impaired, life time ECL is recognized. The method is similar to that for
Stage 2 loans / assets, with the PD set at 100%.

Offsetting of Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Write Off

Loans and Debt Securities are written off when the company has no reasonable expectations of recovering
the financial asset (either in its entirety or a portion of it). This is the case when the Company determines
that the borrower does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to
repay the amounts, subject to the write-off. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event. The Company
may apply enforcement activities to the financial assets written off. Recoveries resulting from the
Company’s enforcement activities will result in impairment gains and will be recognized in the Statement
of Profit and Loss.

3.3.7 Derivative financial instruments

The Company enters into forward contracts to hedge the foreign currency risk of firm commitments and
highly probable forecast transactions. Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date the
derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently re-measured to their fair value at the end of
each reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
immediately unless the derivative is designated and effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the
timing of the recognition in the Statement of Profit and Loss depends on the nature of the hedging
relationship and the nature of the hedged item.
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3.4

Cash Flow Hedges

A cash flow hedge is a hedge of the exposure to variability in cash flows that is attributable to a particular
risk associated with a recognized asset or liability (such as all or some future interest payments on variable
rate debt) or a highly probable forecast transaction and could affect profit and loss. For designated and
qualifying cash flow hedges, the effective portion of the cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument
is initially recognized directly in OCI within equity (cash flow hedge reserve). The ineffective portion of the
gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognized immediately in Finance Cost in the statement of profit
and loss. When the hedged cash flow affects the statement of profit and loss, the effective portion of the
gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recorded in the corresponding income or expense line of the
statement of profit and loss. When a hedging instrument expires, is sold, terminated, exercised, or when a
hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss that has been
recognized in OC| at that time remains in OC! and is recognized when the hedged forecast transaction is
ultimately recognized in the statement of profit and loss. When a forecast transaction is no longer
expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that was reported in OCl is immediately transferred to the
statement of profit and loss. The Company’s hedging policy only allows for effective hedging relationships
to be considered as hedges as per the relevant Ind-AS. Hedge effectiveness is determined at the inception
of the hedge relationship, and through periodic prospective effectiveness assessments to ensure that an
economic relationship exists between the hedged item and hedging instrument. The Company enters into
hedge relationships where the critical terms of the hedging instrument match with the terms of the
hedged item, and so a qualitative and quantitative assessment of effectiveness is performed.

Fair Value Hedges

Fair value hedges hedge the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognised asset or liability, or an
identified portion of such an asset, liability, that is attributable to a particular risk and could affect profit or
loss.

For designated and qualifying fair value hedges, the cumulative change in the fair value of a hedging
derivative is recognised in the statement of profit and loss in Finance Costs. Meanwhile, the cumulative
change in the fair value of the hedged item attributable to the risk hedged is recorded as part of the
carrying value of the hedged item in the balance sheet and is also recognised in the statement of profit
and loss in Finance Cost.

The Company classifies a fair value hedge relationship when the hedged item (or group of items) is a
distinctively identifiable asset or liability hedged by one or a few hedging instruments. The financial
instruments hedged for interest rate risk in a fair value hedge relationship is fixed rate debt issued and
other borrowed funds. If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, or where the
hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, the hedge relationship is discontinued
prospectively. If the relationship does not meet hedge effectiveness criteria, the Company discontinues
hedge accounting from the date on which the qualifying criteria are no longer met. For hedged items
recorded at amortised cost, the accumulated fair value hedge adjustment to the carrying amount of the
hedged item on termination of the hedge accounting relationship is amortised over the remaining term of
the original hedge using the recalculated EIR method by recalculating the EIR at the date when the
amortisation begins. If the hedged item is derecognised, the unamortised fair value adjustment is
recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

Taxes
Current income Tax

Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance
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Current income tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss
(either in other comprehensive income or equity). Current tax items are recognized in correlation to the
underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred Tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except:

-When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

-In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and
interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized, except:

-When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of
the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

-In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and
interest in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year
when the asset is realized to the liability is settled, based on tax rates {and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss (either in
other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the
underlying transaction either in OCl or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority.
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3.5 Property, plant and equipment (‘PPE’)

PPE are held for use in supply of services and for administrative purpose, used for more than one period
and not held for sale in the normal course of business. PPE and Capital work-in-progress (‘CWIP’} are
stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation.

Subsequent costs are included in the assets carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as
appropriate only if it is probable that the expenditure incurred with increase the future economic benefits
/ functionality capability of the asset and that the cost of the item can be reliably measured. The carrying
amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when replaced and resulting
gain / loss, if any, is recognized in other income / expenses in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year
the asset is derecognized. All other repair and maintenance are charged to the Statement of Profit and
Loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation, estimated useful life and residual value

The depreciation is calculated on straight line method using the rates arrived based on useful lives as
estimated by management. Depreciation on assets purchased during the period is provided on pro rata
basis from the date asset is available for use as intended by management. Item of PPE is derecognized
upon disposal, when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The residual
values, useful lives and method of depreciation of PPE are reviewed annually and adjusted prospectively.

The Company has used below estimated useful lives to provide depreciation and amortization on its
Property, plant and equipment.

Assets Estimated Useful A Estimated Useful
Life (in years) as | Life (in years) as
per Companies ;| per Management
Act, 2013

Tangible Assets:

Computers 3 3

Servers 3 3

Furniture & Fixtures 10 10

Office Equipment

Vehicles 8 4

Land and Building 60 60

Leasehold improvements = As per Lease term | As per Lease term

Intangible Assets:

Software 3 5

The management has estimated, supported by independent assessment by professionals, the useful life of
the following class of asset.

The management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of
the period over which the assets are likely to be used. Consequently, the useful life of certain vehicles and
software differ from the life prescribed in Schedule Il of the Act. Vehicles are depreciated over the
estimated useful life of 4 years which is lower than those indicated in schedule Il.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equ1pment are
Jeviewed at each fmanual year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. =T
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Further, Company has made policy of considering the assets costing less than Rs. 10,000 as operating
expenses i.e., fully depreciated in the year of purchase.

3.6 Other Intangible Assets and Amortization
Intangible assets are assets without physical substance, controlled by Company as a result of past events
and from which future economic benefits are expected to flow. Intangible asset includes computer
software. Intangible assets are stated at cost, net of accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment losses.
Such intangible assets are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated amortization and any

accumulated impairment losses. The useful life of these intangible assets is estimated at 5 years with zero
residual value. Amortization on assets purchased during the year is provided on pro rata basis from the
date asset is available for use. The residual values, useful lives and method of amortization are reviewed
annually and adjusted prospectively.

Intangible assets not ready for the intended use on the date of Balance Sheet are disclosed as “Intangible
assets under development.

Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of
profit or loss when the asset is derecognized.

3.7 Impairment of Assets
The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company
estimates the asset’s recoverable amount.

A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions
used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. The
reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been
recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the statement of profit or loss unless
the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

3.8 Provisions, Contingent liabilities and Contingent Assets
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of
a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The expenses
relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit or loss.

if the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate
that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in
the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

Contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed
by occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the
Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases
where there is liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company
does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statement.

.. Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements since this may result in the recognition of

m‘g&me that may never be realized. However, when the realization of income is virtually certain, then
1a

\": . . .
{fated asset is not a contingent asset and gets recognized

”}%
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3.9 Foreign Currency Transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the rate of exchange prevailing on the date of
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency at the rates of exchange on the reporting date. Exchange difference on restatement of
all other monetary items are recognized as Derivative assets/liabilities.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Although these
estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty
about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods. These are reviewed at each year end and
reflect the best current estimate.

3.10 Leases
The Company as a lessee

The Company’s lease assets primarily consist of leases for land and buildings. The Company assesses
whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the
Company assesses whether: (1) the contract involves the use of an identified asset (2) the Company has
substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (3) the
Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes right — of — use (“ROU”) asset and a
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term
of twelve months or less (short term leases) and low value leases. For these short term and low value
leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over
the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the
lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they
will be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any
initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter
of the lease term and useful life of the under lying asset. Right of use assets are evaluated for
recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not
be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair
value less cost to sell and the value in use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset
generates cash flows that are largely dependent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable
amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

;The lease Itab|I|ty is mmally measured at amorttsed cost at the present value of the future lease payments
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3.11

3.12

e _

determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of the leases. Lease
liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the Company
changes its assessment on exercise of an extension or a termination option.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments
have been classified as financing cash flows.

Fair Value Measurement

The Company measures financial instruments such as investment in mutual funds at fair value at each
balance sheet date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either:

- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another marker
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

Fair value hierarchy

Ind AS 107, ‘Financial Instrument - Disclosure’ requires classification of the valuation method of financial
instruments measured at fair value in the Balance Sheet, using three level fair-value-hierarchy (which
reflects the significance of inputs used in the measurements). The hierarchy gives the highest priority to
un-adjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and
lowest priority to un-observable inputs (Level 3 measurements). The three levels of the fair-value-
hierarchy under Ind AS 107 are described below:

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using
valuation techniques which maximize the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on
entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the
instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is
included in level. This is the case for unlisted equity securities included in level 3.

Statement of Cash Flows
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the year is adjusted for the effects
of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or
payments and items of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash
flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

g
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3.13 Earnings Per Share

Basic Earnings per share (EPS) is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to
Equity Shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.
Earnings considered in ascertaining the EPS is the net profit for the year and any attributable tax thereto
for the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to
equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted
for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

3.14 Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period are those events, both favorable and unfavorable that occur between
end of the reporting period and the date on which the financial statements are approved for issue.

Adjusting Events
Events which provide further evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period are
adjusting events. Financials have been adjusted for those events.

Non-adjusting Events

Events which are of indicative of conditions that arise after the end of the reporting period are Non-
adjusting events. Disclosure of the nature of event and estimate of its financial effect have been made in
the financial statements.

3.15 Segment Reporting

3.16

Operating business segment results are reviewed regularly by the Company's Chief Operating Decision
Maker (“CODM”) to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segments and assess their
performance. Business segment is the primary segment comprising of ‘Financing activity’. As the Company
operates only in a single business segment, no segment information thereof is given as required under Ind
AS 108.

Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions
The preparation of Ind AS financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and

assumptions that affect the reported amount of revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities and the
accompanying disclosures, as well as the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying
amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Judgments

In the process of applying the accounting policies, management has made the following judgments, which
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year.

a) Business model assessment

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the SPPI and the business
model test. The Company determines the business model at a level that reflects how groups of financial
assets are managed together to achieve a particular business objective. This assessment includes
judgement reflecting all relevant evidence including how the performance of the assets is evaluated and
their performance measured, the risks that affect the performance of the assets and how these are
managed and how the managers of the assets are compensated. The Company monitors financial assets

y.to.understand the reason for their disposal and whether the reasons are consisten
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the objective of the business for which the asset was held. Monitoring is part of the Company’s continuous
assessment of whether the business model for which the remaining financial assets are held continues to
be appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether there has been a change in business model and so a
prospective change to the classification of those assets.

b) Fair Value of Financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be
measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using various valuation
techniques. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this
is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values. Judgments include
considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these
factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

c) Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method

The Company’s EIR methodology, recognises interest income / expense using a rate of return that
represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected behavioural life of loans given
/ taken and recognises the effect of potentially different interest rates at various stages and other
characteristics of the product life cycle (including prepayments and penalty interest and charges). This
estimation, by nature, requires an element of judgement regarding the expected behaviour and life-cycle
of the instruments, as well expected changes to India’s base rate and other fee income/expense that are
integral parts of the instrument.

d) Impairment of financial asset

The measurement of impairment losses across all categories of financial assets requires judgement, in
particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows and collateral values when
determining impairment losses and the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk. These estimates
are driven by a number of factors, changes which can result in different levels of allowances. It has been
the Company’s policy to regularly review its models in the context of actual loss experience and adjust
when necessary. The impairment loss on loans and advances is disclosed in more detail in Note 30.

e) Provisions and other contingent liabilities

The Company operates in a regulatory and legal environment that, by nature, has a heightened element of
litigation risk inherent to its operations. As a result, it is involved in various litigation, arbitration and
proceedings in the ordinary course of the Company’s business. When the Company can reliably measure
the outflow of economic benefits in relation to a specific case and considers such outflows to be probable,
the Company records a provision against the case. Where the probability of outflow is considered to be
remote, or probable, but a reliable estimate cannot be made, a contingent liability is disclosed. Given the
subjectivity and uncertainty of determining the probability and amount of losses, the Company takes into
account a number of factors including legal advice, the stage of the matter and historical evidence from
similar incidents. Significant judgement is required to conclude on these estimates.

f) Deferred Tax
Deferred tax is recorded on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
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during the periods in which those temporary differences become deductible. The Company considers the
expected reversal of deferred tax liabilities and projected future taxable income in making this
assessment. The amount of the deferred tax assets considered realisable, however, could be reduced in
the near term if estimates of future taxable income during the carry-forward period are reduced.

g) Defined benefit plans

The cost of the defined benefit plans and the present value of the defined benefit obligation are based on
actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method. An actuarial valuation involves making various
assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of
the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the
valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.
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4 Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Balances with banks 60,703.63 45,536.59
Investment in highly liquid securities - 29,979.47
Total 60,703.63 75,516.06

5 Receivables

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

a) Trade Receivables considered good — Unsecured

- Related parties

- Others 759.27 13.88
b) Other Receivables considered good ~ Unsecured - -
c) Receivables which have significant increase in Credit Risk - -
d) Receivables - credit impaired - -
Total Receivables 759.27 13.88
Less: Impairment loss allowance - -
Total 759.27 13.88

No amount is due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person, or from firms or private companies
respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member.

5a Receivables ageing as at March 31, 2024

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment#

Particulars tess than6 |  months - 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
months 1year
{i) Undisputed Trade receivables -~ considered good,
Unsecured 759.27 - - - - 759.27
{ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have
significant increase in credit risk - - - - - -
(i} Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables— considered good - - - - - -
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables — which have significant
increase in credit risk - N N - N -
(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - - - - - -
Receivables ageing as at March 31, 2023
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment#
Particulars Less than 6 | § months - Total
months 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
{i} Undisputed Trade receivables ~ considered good,
Unsecured 13.88 - - . R 13.88

{ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have
|significant increase in credit risk

{iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables— considered good

{v) Disputed Trade Receivables — which have significant
increase in credit risk

{vi) Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired

#The ageing of the receivable is determined from the date of the transaction
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6 Loans
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(A) Loans
(1) Term Loans at amortised cost 30,72,511.21 22,30,460.05
(2) Loans repayable on demand at amortised cost - -
30,72,511.21 22,30,460.05
Less: Impairment loss allowance (36,833.72) {29,835.09)
Total 30,35,677.49 22,00,624.96
(B) Out of above
(i) Loans in India
Loans to Public Sector - -
Loans to Others 30,72,511.21 22,30,460.05
30,72,511.21 22,30,460.05
Less: Impairment loss allowance (36,833.72) (29,835.09)
Total 30,35,677.49 22,00,624.96
{ii) Loans outside India - -
Total (i+ii) 30,35,677.49 22,00,624.96
{C) Out of above
1) Secured by tangible assets 24,82,760.93 17,96,377.78
2) Covered by Bank/Government Guarantees 25,183.15 38,603.06
3) Unsecured 5,64,567.13 3,95,479.21
Total Loans 30,72,511.21 22,30,460.05
Less: Impairment loss allowance (36,833.72) (29,835.09)
Total 30,35,677.49 22,00,624.96
Notes:-

1) Loans to the extent of X in Lakhs 25,07,944.08 (March 31, 2023: 18,34,980.84) are secured by:

(i) Hypothecation of assets and / or
(it} Mortgage of property and / or

{iii) Corporate guarantee/personal guarantee of directors in certain cases over and above of security and / or

{iv) Government guarantees
(v) Pledge of shares & other financial securities.

2) There is no loan asset measured at FVOCI or FVTPL or designated at FVTPL.
3) There are no Loans or advances in the nature of loans are granted to promoters, Directors, KMPs and the related parties (as defined under the Companies
Act, 2013), either severally or jointly with any other person that are: (a) repayable on demand or (b) without specifying any terms or period of repayment during

the year ended March 31, 2024 (March 31, 2023: NiL).
4) Refer Note 30 for Credit quality of financial assets and Expected credit loss.
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7 Investments

As at March 31, 2024
Particulars Amortised Cost At Fair value through Total
Profit & Loss Account
1 2 (3=1+2)
Held for Trading Investments (In India)
Quoted
Investment in Government Securities - 4,063.22 4,063.22
Investment in Other Securities - 5,348.59 5,348.59
Held till Maturity Investments {In India)
Quoted
Investment in Government Securities 57,851.42 - 57,851.42
Investment in Debt Securities 37,963.76 - 37,963.76
Unguoted
Investment in Debt Securities 49,955.97 49,955.97
Total — Gross (A) 1,45,771.15 9,411.81 1,55,182.96
Less: Impairment loss allowance (B) (366.68) - (366.68)
Total - Net {A-B) 1,45,404.47 9,411.81 1,54,816.28

1) There are no investment measured at FVOC! or designated at FVOCL.

2) There are no investment outside India.

3) Impairment loss allowance is created on Debt Securities

As at March 31, 2023
Particulars Amortised Cost At Fair value through Total
Profit & Loss Account
1 2 (3=1+2)
Held for Trading Investments (In India)
Quoted
Investment in Government Securities 2,535.16 2,535.16
Investment in Short Term Securities 4,587.70 4,587.70
Held till Maturity Investments (In India)
Quoted
Investment in Government Securities 44,856.33 - 44,856.33
Investment in Debt Securities 10,327.90 10,327.90
Unguoted
Investment in Debt Securities 28,800.00 - 28,800.00
Total — Gross (A) 83,984.23 7,122.86 91,107.09
Less: Impairment loss allowance (B) (174.50) - (174.50)
Total — Net (A-B) 83,809.73 7,122.86 90,932.59

1) There are no investment measured at FVOC! or designated at FVOCI.

2) There are no investment outside India

3) Impairment loss allowange is created on Debt Securities
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8 Other financial assets

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Security Deposits* 990.62 885,71
Excess Interest Spread 15,661.98 12,071.03
Other Assets 716.09 673.50
Total 17,368.69 13,630.24

*Security Deposits are shown at Amortised Cost

g Deferred tax & Income Tax:

In accordance with Ind AS 12 “Income Taxes”, the Company has accounted for deferred taxes during the period. Deferred tax comprises of timing difference on

account of following:-

Deferred Tax Asset/(Liability) Asat Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Unamortized Processing Fees on loans 961.92 634,58
Lease and Deposit Fair Value 43,15 26.06
Expected Credit Loss 9,270.29 7,508.87
Unamortized Processing Fees on Term Loan borrowings 1.32 0.91
Others 68.44 95.46
Depreciation (72.54) (115.49)
EIR Adjustment on Interest income - (0.16)
Unamortized Processing Fees on NCD borrowings (7.37) (177.99)
Total 10,265.21 7,972.24
Movement of Deferred Tax Assets/(Liability)
For the year ended March 31, 2024
Deferred Tax Recognised in|  Recognised in Recognised Deferred Tax
Deferred taxes in relation to Asset/(Liability) Stater‘nent of Other R directly in Total movement |Asset/(Liability) as on
as on April 1, 2023 Profitand | Comprehensive equity March 31, 2024
Loss Income
Deferred tax assets
Unamortized Processing Fees on loans 634,58 327.34 - - 327.34 961.92
Lease and Deposit Fair Value 26.06 17.09 - - 17.09 43.15
Expected Credit Loss 7,508.87 1,761.42 - - 1,761.42 9,270.29
Unamortized Processing Fees on Term Loan 0.91 0.41 - - 0.41 1.32
borrowings
Others 95.46 (27.02) - - 27.02 68.44
Deferred tax liabilities
Depreciation (115.49) 42.95 - - 42,95 (72.54)
EiR Adjustment on Interest income {0.16) 0.16 - - 0.16 -
Unamortized Processing Fees on NCD borrowings (177.99) 170.62 - - 170.62 {7.37)
7,972.24 2,292.97 - - 2,292.97 10,265.21
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Movement of Deferred Tax Assets/({Liability)
For the year ended March 31, 2023

Deferred Tax Recognised in| - Recognised in Recognised Deferred Tax
Deferred taxes in relation to Asset/{Liabiiity) Stater}nent of Other . directly in Total movement |Asset/({Liability) as on
X Profitand | Comprehensive B}
as on April 1, 2022 equity March 31, 2023
Loss income
Deferred tax assets
Unamortized Processing Fees on loans 2,069.11 (1,434.53) - - (1,434.53) 634.58
Lease and Deposit Fair Value 46.52 (20.46) - - (20.46) 26.06
Expected Credit Loss 7,040.99 467.88 - - 467.88 7,508.87
Unamortlzed Processing Fees on Term Loan B 091 . . 091 0.91
borrowings
Qthers 61.41 34.05 - - 34.05 95.46
Deferred tax liabilities
Depreciation {118.52) 3.03 - - 3.03 {115.49)
Cash flow hedge reserve (1.61) 1.61 - - 1.61 -
EIR Adjustment on Interest income (18.64) 18.48 - - 18.48 (0.16)
Unamortized Processing Fees on NCD borrowings {267.64) 89.65 - - 89.65 (177.99)
8,811.62 (839.38) - - (839.38) 7,972.24
h £ For the year ended | Forthe year ended
The components of income tax expense are as under March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Current Tax 21,994.68 18,638.61
Adjustment in respect of current income tax of prior years - -
Deferred tax relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences (2,259.81) 792.95
Total tax charge 19,734.87 19,431.56
Current Tax 21,994.68 18,638.61
Deferred tax (2,259.81) 792.95

Income Tax recognised in Other comprehensive income

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (33.15) 48.03
Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss - (1.61)
Total income tax recognised in other comprehensive income {debit) (33.15) 46.42
Current Tax Assets (net)
Particulars As at Asat

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Current Tax Assets {net of provision for income tax) 5,018.65 4,427.73
Current tax liabilities (net)
Particulars Asat Asat

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Current tax liabilities (net of advance income tax) 1,106.38 326.90

The reconciliation of estimated income tax expense at tax rate to income tax expense reported in profit or loss is as follows:

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Profit before tax 79,454.94 77,341.71
Applicable income tax rate (%) 25.17 25.17
Income tax expense calculated at applicable income tax rate 19,997.22 19,465.37
Tax effect of adjustments to reconcile expected income tax expense to reported income tax expense:

Difference other than temporary in nature on account of tax benefits and others:-

1) tax on capital gains (229.87) (35.49)
2) Others (32.48) 1.67
Income tax expense recognised in profit and loss 19,734.87 19,431.55
Effective tax rate for the period 24.84% 25.12%
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10 Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

1

=Y

Particulars Computers Office Furniture & Leasehold Vehicles Land and Building Total
equipment fixtures Improvements
Cost:
As at April 1, 2022 646.35 45.02 74.12 - 68.23 4.50 838.22
Additions 107.88 23.52 12.92 31.50 239.67 - 415.49
Disposals - - - - - -
As at March 31, 2023 754.23 68.54 87.04 31,50 307.90 4.50 1,253.71
Additions 212.67 16.78 42.25 - 269.39 - 541.09
Disposals (20.00) - - - (46.97) - (66.97)
As at March 31, 2024 946.90 85.32 129.29 31.50 530.32 4.50 1,727.83
Depreciation and impairment:
As at April 1, 2022 389.15 14.45 6.78 - 13.15 0.58 424.11
Disposals - - - - - - -
Depreciation charge for the year 149.55 10.80 8.07 0.53 47.68 0.08 216.71
As at March 31, 2023 538.70 25.25 14.85 0.53 60.83 0.66 640.82
Disposals {19.03} - - - (17.66) - {36.69)
Depreciation charge for the year 164.86 14.43 9.68 3.50 117.87 0.08 310.42
As at March 31, 2024 684.53 39.68 24.53 4.03 161.04 0.74 914.55
Net book value:
As at March 31, 2023 215.53 43.29 72.19 30.97 247.07 3.84 612.89
As at March 31, 2024 262.37 45.64 104.76 27.47 369.28 3.76 813.28
1) The Company does not have any benami properties as on reporting date.
2} The Company has not revalued any of its PPE during the year.
3) Title deeds of the immovable property (Land) is held in the name of the Company.
Other Intangible Assets
Particulars Software Total
Computer software
Cost:
As at April 1, 2022 2,516.37 2,516.37
Additions 623.71 623.71
Disposals (18.00) {18.00)
As at March 31, 2023 3,122.08 3,122.08
Additions 659,88 659.88
Disposals - -
As at March 31, 2024 3,781.96 3,781.96
Accumulative amortisation and impairment:
As at April 1, 2022 1,195.72 1,195.72
Disposals {2.04) {2.04)
Amortisation charge for the year 552.93 552.93
As at March 31, 2023 1,746.61 1,746.61
Disposals - -
Amortisation charge for the year 643.43 643.43
As at March 31, 2024 2,390.04 2,390.04
Net book value Softwares:
As at March 31, 2023 1,375.47 1,375.47
As at March 31, 2024 1,391.92 1,391.92
Intangible assets under development
As at March 31, 2023 13.44 13.44
As at March 31, 2024 102.45 102.45

1) The Company has not revalued any of its intangible assets during the year.
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11a Capital-Work-in Progress (CWIP) and Intangible assets under development ageing as at March 31, 2024

Amount in CWIP for a period of

12

cwIP Less than 1 More than 3 Total
1-2 years 2-3 years
year years
Projects in progress 98.96 3.49 - - 102.45
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
CWIP completion schedule
To be completed in
cwip Less than 1 More than 3
€85 than 1-2 years 2-3 years ore than
year years
Project 1 - PENNANT-LOS IMPLEMENTA 61.00 - - -
Project 2 - ICRA Risk Rating 22.80 - - -
Project 3 - others - 18.65 - -
Capital-Work-in Progress {CWIP) and Intangible assets under development ageing as at March 31, 2023
Amount in CWIP for a period of
cwip Less than 1 More than 3 Total
1-2 years 2-3 years
year years
Projects in progress 13.44 - - - 13.44
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
CWIP completion schedule
To be completed in
cwip tess than 1 More than 3
1-2 years 2-3 years
year years
Project 1 - APl Integration 4.38 - - -
Project 2 - Applicant Tracking to managing the
talent acquisition process 4,78 - - -
Project 3 - DSA onboarding portal 4.28 - - -

Other non-financial assets

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Prepaid expenses 1,129.37 894.94
Balances with government authorities
- GST Input tax credit 49.38 88.43
Defined Benefit Asset
- Gratuity - -
Total 1,178.75 983.37




AXIS FINA

NCE LIMITED

Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in rupees lakhs, except per share data and as stated otherwise)

13 Payables
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
i) Trade Payabies
a) total outstanding dues to micro and small enterprises - -
b) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises
-Due to Related parties 1.31 112.76
-Due to others 63.00 95.73
ii) Other Payables
a) total outstanding dues to micro and small enterprises 274.38 269.47
b) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 4,491.89 3,381.30
Total 4,830.58 3,859.26

13a

14

1) No amount is due to directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person, or to firms or private companies respectively in

which any director is a partner, a director or a member.

Trade Payables ageing as at March 31, 2024

Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
(i) MSME 274.38 - - - 274.38
(i) Others 4,556.20 - - 4,556.20
{iii) Disputed dues — MSME - - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues - Others - - - - -
1} Includes unbilled amount of % 4,766.27 lakhs
2) The ageing of Trade Payables is determined from the date of the transaction
Trade Payables ageing as at March 31, 2023

. Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars Less than 1 year : 1-2 years AR 2-3 years Mofe ‘t’han 3 years Total
(i) MSME 269.47 - - - 269.47
(ii) Others 3,589.79 - - - 3,589.79
{iii) Disputed dues — MSME - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues - Others - - - - -
1) Includes unbilled amount of % 3,650.77 lakhs
2) The ageing of Trade Payables is determined from the date of the transaction
Debt Securities
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

At Amortised Cost {In India)
Secured
Non Convertible Debentures (NCD) 10,18,797.39 7,08,698.37
Unsecured
Commercial paper 1,97,000.00 93,000.00
Less: Unamortised Discounting Charges {6,148.13) (5,342.92)
Total 12,09,649.26 7,96,355.45

Security details for Secured non convertible debentures

1) Debentures are secured by: 1. First charge by way of mortgage on immovable property. 2. Pari passu charge by way of hypothecation of book debts and

accounts receivable of minimum 1 to 1.1 time cover.

2) Non Convertible Debentures carry interest @ 7.95% to 8.73%. Unsecured commercial paper carry interest @ 7.05% to 8.56%. In respect of commercial paper,
maximum amount outstanding during the year was X in Lakhs 2,85,054.40 (March 31, 2023: 22,223.81).
3) There have been no default in payment of principal or interest during the year.

4) There are no Debt Securities measured at FVTPL or measure at designated at FVTPL.
5) There is no Debt Instrument which has been issued Outside India.

Particulars of Secured non convertible debentures

. As at
Particulars Face Value Asset Cover ROI Qty March 31, 2024
NCD maturing after one year 1,00,000 1.0x to 1.10x 0% to 8.35% 526200 5,38,914.74
NCD maturing within one year 10,00,000 1.0x to 1.10x 0% to 8.30% 21650 2,25,220.44
NCD maturing after one year 10,00,000 1.0x to 1.10x 0% to07.70% 24490 2,54,662.21
572340 10,18,797.39
Particul Face Val A C ROt t As at
articulars ace Value sset Cover Qty March 31, 2023
NCD maturing after one year 1,00,000 1.0xto 1.10x | 8.07% to 8.35% 64800 65,045.97
NCD maturing within one year 10,00,000 1.0x to 1.10x 0% to 8.40% 18550 1,98,150.17
NCD maturing after one year 10,00,000 1.0x to 1.10x 0 % to 8.40% 45840 4,45,502.23
129190 7,08,698.37
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Particulars of Commercial Paper

. As at
Maturity date Face Value Qty March 31, 2024
CP maturing within one year 5,00,000 39,400 1,97,000.00
39,400 1,97,000.00
] As at
Maturity date Face Value Qty March 31, 2023
CP maturing within one year 5,00,000 18,600 93,000.00
18,600 93,000.00
Borrowings (Other than debt securities)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
At Amortised Cost {In india)
Secured
Loan from related party 81,779.85 70,495.00
Loan from other Banks 12,51,246.07 9,66,455.49
Foreign currency term loan from bank 7,726.27 13,856.85

Total

13,40,752.19

10,50,807.34

Secured

1. Term Loan amounting to % in Lakhs 13,40,752.19, (March 31, 2023: 10,50,807.34) as referred above are secured by pari passu first charge on all present and

future book debts, receivables, loan assets of the Company. These carry interest @ 7.50% to 9.00%.

2. There have been no default in payment of principal or interest during the year.

3. Term Loan from Banks will be repaid as per below

Repayment As at As at
March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023

Loans maturing within one year 68,562.04 2,39,005.94

Loans maturing after one year 12,72,190.15 8,11,801.40

13,40,752.19

10,50,807.34

Subordinated Liabilities

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
At Amortised Cost (In India)
Unsecured
Subordinated debt (Non-convertible debentures) 2,43,907.32 1,53,020.77
Total 2,43,907.32 1,53,020.77
1) There have been no default in payment of principal or interest during the year.
2) There are no Debt Securities measured at FVTPL or measure at designated at FVTPL
3) There is no Debt Instrument which has been issued Outside India

Particulars Face Value ROi Qty As at

March 31, 2024
NCD maturing after one year 1,00,000 8.28% to 8.38% 82500 83,921.06
NCD maturing after one year 10,00,000 7.40% to 8.80% 6700 70,764.22
NCD maturing after one year 1,00,00,000 7.42% t0 9.73% 865 89,222.04

90065 2,43,907.32
. As at
Particulars Face Value ROI Qty March 31, 2023
NCD maturing after one year 10,00,000 7.40% to 8.80% 6700 70,596.27
NCD maturing after one year 1,00,00,000 7.42% to0 8.34% 800 82,424.50
7500 1,53,020.77

{In case of Perpetual Debt, reference of call option date is given)
Other financial liabilities
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Advances from customers 3,492.37 7,477.48
Other financial liabilities* 72,356.60 63,191.33
Total 75,848.97 70,668.81

(*This also includes book overdraft, unapportioned credits pertaining to loans, assignee payable, etc.)
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Provisions

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

Provision for employee benefits

-Provision for gratuity 105.83 126.78

-Employee benefit payable {performance bonus, incentive/statutory bonus) 3,608.07 2,802.00
Total 3,713.90 2,928.78
Other non-financial liabilities
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Undisputed statutory dues 1,403.29 904.75
Total 1,403.29 904.75
Equity share capital
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Authorised Share Capital

1,00,00,00,000 {(March 31, 2023: 1,00,00,00,000) equity shares of X10/- each 1,00,000.00 1,00,000.00

1,00,000.00 1,00,000.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up:
62,70,63,775 (March 31, 2023: 59,08,13,886) equity shares of X10/- each 62,706.38 59,081.39

62,706.38 59,081.39
{a) Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Balance at the beginning of the year 59,08,13,886 53,85,12,500

Issued during the year

3,62,49,889

5,23,01,386

Reductions during the year

Balance at the end of the year

62,70,63,775

59,08,13,886

During the year ended March 31, 2024 the Company has issued equity shares to existing shareholders on rights issue in two tranches:-
1) 1,81,78,889 equity shares of 10 each at premium of X73 each amounting to X15,088.48 Lakhs in the month of November 2023.
2) 1,80,71,000 equity shares of 10 each at premium of 73 each amounting to X14,998.93 Lakhs in the month of December 2023.

During the year ended March 31, 2023 the Company has issued equity shares to existing shareholders on rights issue in three tranches:-
1) 2,69,25,625 equity shares of 10 each at premium of 65 each amounting to X20,194.22 Lakhs in the month of May 2022.

2) 1,37,91,175 equity shares of 10 each at premium of 66 each amounting to X10,481.29 Lakhs in the month of July 2022.

3) 1,15,84,586 equity shares of 210 each at premium of 70 each amounting to ¥9,267.67 Lakhs in the month of March 2023.

(b) Terms, rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of X 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share.

() In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitted to receive remaining assets of the Company, after
distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

(d) Shares held by holding/ultimate holding Company and/or their subsidiaries

Out of equity shares issued by the Company, shares held by its holding Company, ultimate holding Company and their subsidiaries are as below:

Name of shareholder

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

Axis Bank Limited {the holding Company} and its Nominees
62,70,63,775 (March 31, 2023: 59,08,13,886) equity shares of X 10/- each

62,706.38

59,081.39

{e) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Particulars

As at
% of Holding

As at
% of Holding

Equity shares of X 10 each fully paid
Axis Bank Limited {the holding Company) and its Nominees

100%

100%

f) Shareholding of Promoters as at March 31, 2024 as under:

Shares held by promoters as at March 31, 2024

% Change during the year

S. No Promoter name

No. of Shares

%of total shares

1 Axis Bank Limited

62,70,63,775

100%

No change in shareholding

Total

Shareholding of Promoters as at March 31, 2023 as under:

Shares held by promoters as at March 31, 2023

% Change during the year

S.No Promoter name

No. of Shares

%of total shares

1 Axis Bank Limited

59,08,13,886

100%

No change in shareholding

Total

(g) The Board of directors has not recommended any dividend to shareholders for the year ended March 31, 2024 (March 31, 2023: Nit).
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Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Securities Premium

Balance at the beginning of the year 97,242.12 62,535.64
Add:- Addition during the year 26,462.44 34,713.04
Less:- Utilization during the year against share issue expense {1.50} {6.56)
Balance at the end of the year 1,23,703.06 97,242,12
Statutory Reserve u/s 45-IC of the RBI Act, 1934

Balance at the beginning of the year 43,567.00 31,984.00
Add:- Addition during the year 11,945.00 11,583.00
Balance at the end of the year 55,512.00 43,567.00
Deemed Capital Contribution

Balance at the beginning of the year 1,209.85 1,150.31
Add:- Addition during the year - 59.54
Balance at the end of the year 1,209.85 1,209.85
Retained Earnings

Balance at the beginning of the year 1,15,919.53 69,592.38
Total Comprehensive income for the year 59,720.07 57,910.15
Less:- Final Dividend - -
Less:- Dividend distribution tax on final dividend - -
Less:- Transfer to statutory reserve {11,945.00) {11,583.00)
Balance at the end of the year 1,63,694.60 1,15,919.53
Other Comprehensivelncome (OCH)

Remeasurement of Post Employment Benefit

Balance at the beginning of the year 104.16 (38.65)
Add:- Addition during the year {98.58) 142.81
Balance at the end of the year 5.58 104.16
Cash Flow Hedge Reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year - 4,78
Add:- Addition during the year - (4.78)
Balance at the end of the year - -
Other Comprehensivelncome {OCI) 5.58 104.16
General Reserves

Balance at the beginning of the year 33.04 33.04
Add:- Addition during the year - -
Balance at the end of the year 33.04 33.04
Total 3,44,158.13 2,58,075.70

Securities Premium

Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. It can be utilised only for limited purposes in accordance with the provisions

of the Companies Act, 2013.

Statutory Reserve u/s 45-1C of RBI Act, 1934

Statutory reserve represents reserve fund created pursuant to Section 45-IC of the RBI Act, 1934 through transfer of specified percentage of net
profit every year before any dividend is declared. The reserve fund can be utilised only for limited purposes as specified by RBI from time to time
and every such utilisation shall be reported to the RBI within specified period of time from the date of such utilisation.

Deemed Capital Contribution

The Company select employees had entitlement to receive shares of Axis Bank Limited and the company subsequently did not have obligation to
settle the award and hence, the award was treated as Equity settled plan till 30 June 2021. Accordingly, the Company has recognized an expense
for the grant date fair value of award over the vesting year and corresponding credit as “Deemed Capital Contribution” by parent. The Company
will continue to do so for all grants awarded till 31 March 2020 in this manner.

However, with effect from 1 July 2021, the Company has changed accounting for ESOPs granted by Axis Bank Limited {the “Holding Company”) to
selected employees of the Company. The Holding Company had decided to recover the cost of such options from the Company and accordingly,
the Company has recorded an expense of % 1,308.60 (in Lakhs) during year ended March 31, 2024 {March 31, 2023 : X 860.15 (in Lakhs).

Debenture Redemption Reserve
Debenture Redemption Reserve has not been created as the Company has issued its Non convertible debentures through private placement.

Retained Earnings
Retained earnings represents undistributed accumulated earnings of the Company as on Balance Sheet date.

General Reserves
General reserves represents the balance of reserves transferred on merger of Axis Private Equity Limited with the Company.

Cash Flow Hedges Reserve
It represents the cumulative gains/(losses) arising on revaluation of the derivative instruments designated as cash flow hedges through OCI.
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Interest Income

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

Interest on Loans (at amortised cost) 2,87,469.49 2,05,768.31
Interest income from investments (at amortised cost) 7,897.53 5,978.96
Interest income from investments (FVTPL) 1,887.54 1,658.67
Interest on Fixed Deposits with Banks 361.81 182.97
Interest on Lease Deposits 54.04 35.96
Total 2,97,670.41 2,13,624.87

Fees and commission Income

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Cheque / NACH Bouncing Charges 198.86 142.88
Pre/Part payment Charges 393.10 149.96
Foreclosure Charges 2,994.08 1,223.48
Miscellaneous fees 106.50 2,129.83
Others 1,343.79 679.68
Total 5,036.32 4,325.83

Net gain on fair value changes

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

On trading portfolio

Net gain on fair value changes {Realised) 3,342.98 562.45
Net gain on fair value changes (Unrealised) 508.24 12.94
Total 3,851.22 575.39

Finance Costs

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

Interest expenses on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

Interest on borrowings 1,00,168.81 55,898.39
Interest on debt securities 51,682.14 46,741.61
Amortisation of discount on commercial paper 15,056.09 5,235.70
Interest on subordinated liabilities 14,354.53 9,319.37
Interest on lease liabilities 160.89 113.29
Other Finance expense 1,550.61 2,158.25
Interest On Income Tax - 172.03

Total

1,82,973.07

1,19,638.64

Impairment on financial instruments

Particulars

fFor the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

Impairment on financial instruments at amortised cost

Loans* 14,831.15 6,471.37
Investments 192.18 62.79
Total 15,023.33 6,534.16
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Employee Benefits Expenses

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

Salaries and wages 22,083.80 17,259.24
Share based payments to employees 1,308.60 919.69
Contribution to provident and other funds 693.05 535.83
Gratuity expenses 128.38 316.80
Staff welfare expenses 304.30 218.44
Total 24,518.13 19,250.00
Depreciation, amortization and impairment

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

Property, plant and equipment 310.44 216.71
Other Intangible assets 643.42 552.94
Right-of-use assets 1,085.54 787.09
Total 2,039.40 1,556.74
Other expenses

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Rent, Rates and Taxes 314.16 263.79
Electricity expenses 167.02 138.71
Repairs and maintenance - others 492.17 350.70
Printing and stationery 108.06 71.97
Travelling and conveyance 902.19 560.70
Professional fees 1,924.45 1,999.71
CSR expenditure* 999.76 644.53
Director sitting fees 188.00 124.00
Auditors Remuneration** 90.00 84.10
Telephone and internet expenses 254.51 112.01
Business promotion 27.43 21.62
Rates & taxes 15.20 9.67
Royalty charges 460.19 348.52
Service charges 424.88 298.00
Office expenses 240.21 247.30
GST Expense out (50% of input credit) 2,664.23 1,891.20
Subscription Exps 415.04 339.65
Collection agency payout 547.44 230.66
Waiver Write off charges 490.97 47.48
Insurance expenses 2.79 15.66
Miscellaneous expenses 675.78 537.01
Total 11,404.48 8,336.99

* Corporate Social Responsibility expenditure (CSR)

Particular

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

(a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year

989.76

644.53

{b) Amount spent in cash during the year on:

{i) Construction/acquisition of any asset

{ii) On purposes other than (i) above

{c) Excess / (Shortfall) at the end of the year

(d) Total of previous years shortfall

(e) Reason for shortfall

(f) Nature of CSR activities (activities as per Schedule VII)

{g) Details of related party transactions

(h) Where a provision is made with respect to a liability incurred by entering

into a contractual obligation

Total

999.76

644.53

** payment to Auditors

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particular March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

As Auditors

Audit Fee 85.00 75.00

Certification and other fees 5.00 5.00

Reimbursement of expenses - 4.10
W8 90.00

Total A3
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30
A)
i)

{ii)

{iii)

Credit Quality of Financial Assets & Expected Credit Loss (ECL)

Loans and Advances
Loans and advances (at amortised cost)

Particulars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Total - Gross 30,72,511.21 22,30,460.05
Less: Impairment loss allowance 36,833.72 29,835.09
Total - Net 30,35,677.49 22,00,624.96
a) Secured by tangible assets & Bank/Government Guarantees 25,07,944.08 18,34,980.84
b) Unsecured 5,64,567.13 3,95,479.21
Total - Gross 30,72,511.21 22,30,460.05
Less: Impairment loss allowance 36,833.72 29,835.09
Total - Net 30,35,677.49 22,00,624.96
Note: Facilities covered by ECLGS are clubbed according to nature of the parent loan.
Credit quality of assets
Particulars For the year ended March 31, 2024

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Performing
Standard 29,99,720.37 - - 29,99,720.37
Past due but not impaired - 28,416.52 - 28,416.52
Non Performing
Indivdually impaired - - 7,540.60 7,540.60
Total 29,99,720.37 28,416.52 7,540.60 30,35,677.49
Particulars For the year ended March 31, 2023

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Performing
Standard 21,68,458.96 - - 21,68,458.96
Past due but not impaired - 26,307.42 - 26,307.42
Non Performing
Individually Impaired - - 5,858.58 5,858.58
Total 21,68,458.96 26,307.42 5,858.58 22,00,624.96

Reconciliation of Gross carrying amount-loans

Particulars

For the year ended March 31, 2024

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Gross carrying amount opening balance 21,87,920.53 28,849.82 13,689.70 22,30,460.05
New assets originated (refer note 1 below) 17,74,944.86 2,522.47 6,794.54 17,84,261.87
Assets repaid (excluding write offs) {9,28,310.87) (2,940.68) (3,126.63) (9,34,378.18)
Transfers to Stage 1 9,325.42 (4,679.59) (4,645.83) -
Transfers to Stage 2 (8,793.58) 8,793.58 - -
Transfers to Stage 3 (7,838.15) (1,756.08) 9,594.23 -
Amounts written off - (7,832.53) (7,832.53)
Gross carrying amount closing balance 30,27,248.21 30,789.52 14,473.48 30,72,511.21

Particulars For the year ended March 31, 2023
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Gross carrying amount opening balance 16,01,975.43 14,893.22 20,397.25 16,37,265.89
New assets originated (refer note 1 below) 14,25,364.29 1,561.91 897.64 14,27,823.84
Assets repaid (excluding write offs) (8,21,763.11) (1,757.31) (6,496.99) (8,30,017.40)
Transfers to Stage 1 12,876.96 (9,888.35) (2,988.61) -
Transfers to Stage 2 (26,608.85) 26,617.83 (8.98) -
Transfers to Stage 3 (3,924.19) (2,577.48) 6,501.67 -
Amounts written off - - (4,612.28) (4,612.28)
Gross carrying amount closing balance 21,87,920.53 28,849.82 13,689.70 22,30,460.05

Note 1: New assets originated represents fresh disbursals made during the year. Classification of new assets originated in stage1,2,3 is based on

s e

year end staging.
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30
A)
{iv)

{v)

Credit Quality of Financial Assets & Expected Credit Loss (ECL)

Loans and Advances

Reconciliation of Expected Credit Loss (ECL)/allowance

Particulars For the year ended March 31, 2024

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
ECL allowance - opening balance 19,461.51 2,542.45 7,831.13 29,835.09
New assets originated or purchased 11,270.43 236.22 6,747.21 18,253.86
Assets derecognised or repaid (excluding write offs) (3,093.21) (188.46) (515.68) (3,797.35)
Transfers to Stage 1 3,909.08 (687.10) (3,221.98) -
Transfers to Stage 2 (89.16) 89.16 - -
Transfers to Stage 3 (77.63) (156.28) 233.91 -
Impact on year end ECL of exposures transferred (3,853.26) 537.06 3,690.85 374.65
between stages during the year
Amounts written off - - (7,832.53) (7,832.53)
ECL allowance - closing balance 27,527.76 2,373.05 6,932.91 36,833.72
Particulars For the year ended March 31, 2023

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
ECL allowance - opening balance 13,042.33 1,501.63 13,432.03 27,975.99
New assets originated or purchased* 12,903.17 258.47 666.84 13,828.48
Assets derecognised or repaid (excluding write offs) (6,006.87) (88.63) (2,117.54) (8,213.04)
Transfers to Stage 1 3,712.67 {(990.29) (2,722.38) -
Transfers to Stage 2 (426.08) 432.95 {6.87) -
Transfers to Stage 3 (60.06) (263.22) 323.28 -
Impact on year end ECL of exposures transferred (3,703.65) 1,691.54 2,868.05 855.94
between stages during the year
Amounts written off - - (4,612.28) (4,612.28)
ECL allowance - closing balance 19,461.51 2,542.45 7,831.13 29,835.09

*New assets originated represents fresh disbursals made during the year. Classification of new assets originated in stagel,2,3 is based on year end

staging.

Undrawn commitment - Credit Quality of Assets

Particulars

For the year ended March 31, 2024

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Performing
Standard 2,37,491.88 2,350.03 - 2,39,841.91
Non Performing
Indivdually Impaired - - - -
Total 2,37,491.88 2,350.03 - 2,39,841.91
Particulars For the year ended March 31, 2023

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Performing
Standard 1,85,747.00 813.59 - 1,86,560.59
Non Performing
Indivdually Impaired - - - -
Total 1,85,747.00 813.59 - 1,86,560.59




AXIS FINANCE LIMITED
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in rupees lakhs, except per share data and as stated otherwise)

30
A)
{vi)

(i)

Credit Quality of Financial Assets & Expected Credit Loss (ECL)

Loans and Advances
Undrawn commitment - Gross carrying amount

Particulars

For the year ended March 31, 2024

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Gross carrying amount opening balance 1,85,747.00 813.59 - 1,86,560.59
New assets originated 1,88,015.37 2,121.61 - 1,90,136.98
Assets derecognised (1,36,776.19) (79.47) - (1,36,855.66)
Transfers to Stage 1 530.70 (530.70) - -
Transfers to Stage 2 (25.00) 25.00 - -
Transfers to Stage 3 - - - -
Amounts written off - - - -
Gross carrying amount closing balance 2,37,491.88 2,350.03 - 2,39,841.91

Particulars For the year ended March 31, 2023

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Gross carrying amount opening balance 1,47,456.13 - - 1,47,456.13
New assets originated 1,39,964.86 483.44 - 1,40,448.30
Assets derecognised (1,00,573.89) (769.95) - (1,01,343.84)
Transfers to Stage 1 - - - -
Transfers to Stage 2 {1,100.10) 1,100.10 - -
Transfers to Stage 3 - - - -
Amounts written off - - - -
Gross carrying amount closing balance 1,85,747.00 813.59 - 1,86,560.59
Investments
Investments
Particulars Amortised Cost Fair Value Through Total

Profit & Loss

As at March 31, 2024
Government Securities 57,851.42 4,063.22 61,914.64
Non-Convertible Debenture 87,919.73 - 87,919.73
Other Securities - 5,348.59 5,348.59
Total Gross 1,45,771.15 9,411.81 1,55,182.96
Less: Impairment loss allowance 366.68 - 366.68
Total 1,45,404.47 9,411.81 1,54,816.28
As at March 31, 2023
Government Securities 44,856.33 2,535.16 47,391.49
Non-Convetible Debenture 39,127.90 - 39,127.90
Other Securities - 4,587.70 4,587.70
Total Gross 83,984.23 7,122.86 91,107.09
Less: Impairment loss allowance 174.50 - 174.50
Total 83,809.73 7,122.86 90,932.59
Credit quality of assets
Particulars For the year ended March 31, 2024

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Performing
Standard 1,54,816.28 - - 1,54,816.28
Non Performing
Indivdually Impaired - - - -
Total 1,54,816.28 - - 1,54,816.28
Particulars For the year ended March 31, 2023

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Performing
Standard 90,932.59 - - 90,932.59
Non Performing
Indivdually Impaired - - - -
Total 90,932.59 - -

90,932.59
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B

(iif)

(iv}

Credit Quality of Financial Assets & Expected Credit Loss (ECL)

investments
Changes in Gross carrying amount
Particulars For the year ended March 31, 2024

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Gross carrying amount opening balance 91,107.09 91,107.09
New assets originated 73,084.04 73,084.04
Assets repaid (excluding write offs) {9,008.17) {9,008.17)

Transfers to Stage 1

Transfers to Stage 2

Transfers to Stage 3

Changes to contractual cash flows due to
modifications not resulting in derecognition

Amounts written off

Gross carrying amount closing balance

1,55,182.96

1,55,182.96

Particulars For the year ended March 31, 2023

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Gross carrying amount opening balance 69,035.55 69,035.55
New assets originated 37,655.85 37,655.85
Assets repaid (excluding write offs) {15,584.31) (15,584.31)
Transfers to Stage 1 - -
Transfers to Stage 2 - -
Transfers to Stage 3 - -
Changes to contractual cash flows due to - -
modifications not resulting in derecognition
Amounts written off - -
Gross carrying amount closing balance 91,107.09 91,107.09
Reconciliation of Expected Credit Loss balance (ECL)
Particulars For the year ended March 31, 2024

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
ECL allowance - opening balance 174.50 174.50
New assets originated 242.76 242.76
Effect of change in estimate/ repayment (50.58) {50.58)}
Transfers to Stage 1 - -
Transfers to Stage 2 - -
Transfers to Stage 3 - -
Impact on year end ECL of exposures transferred - -
between stages during the year
Changes to models and inputs used for ECL - -
calculations
Amounts written off - -
ECL allowance - closing balance 366.68 366.68
Particulars For the year ended March 31, 2023

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
ECL allowance - opening balance 111.72 111.72
New assets originated 135.00 135.00
Effect of change in estimate/ repayment (72.22) (72.22)

Transfers to Stage 1

Transfers to Stage 2

Transfers to Stage 3

Impact on year end ECL of exposures transferred
between stages during the year

Changes to models and inputs used for ECL
calculations

Amounts written off

ECL allowance - closing balance
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30 Credit Quality of Financial Assets & Expected Credit Loss (ECL)
C) Trade Receivables
(i) Trade Receivables

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Unsecured considered good 759.27 13.88
Less : Impairment loss allowance - -
Total - Net 759.27 13.88
(ii) Credit quality of assets
For the year ended March 31, 2024
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Approach Total
Performing
Standard ] 759.27 - - - 759.27
Non Performing
Indivdually Impaired - - - - -
Total 759.27 - - - 759.27
For the year ended March 31, 2023
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Approach Total
Performing
Standard 13.88 - - - 13.88
Non Performing
indivdually impaired - - - - -
Total 13.88 - - - 13.88
(iii) Changes in Gross carrying amount
For the year ended March 31, 2024
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Approach Total
Gross carrying amount opening balance 13.88 - - - 13.88
New assets originated (refer note 1 below) 759.27 - - - 759.27
Assets repaid (excluding write offs) {13.88) - - - (13.88)
Transfers to Stage 1 - - - - -
Transfers to Stage 2 - - - - -
Transfers to Stage 3 - - - - -
Amounts written off - - - - -
New asset as per Simplified approach - - - - -
Gross carrying amount closing balance 759.27 - - - 759.27
For the year ended March 31, 2023
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Simplified Total
Approach
Gross carrying amount opening balance 601.98 - - - 601.98
New assets originated (refer note 1 below) 13.88 - - - 13.88
Assets repaid (excluding write offs) (601.98) - - - (601.98)
Transfers to Stage 1 - - - - -
Transfers to Stage 2 - - - - -
Transfers to Stage 3 - - - - -
Amounts written off - - - - -
New asset as per Simplified approach - - - - -
Gross carrying amount closing balance 13.88 - - - 13.88

Note 1: New assets originated represents fresh disbursal made during the year. Classification of new assets originated in stage1,2,3 is
based on year end staging. i
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(iv) Reconciliation of Expected Credit Loss balance

For the year ended March 31, 2024

Simplified

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Approach Total
ECL allowance - opening balance - - - - -
New assets originated - - - - -
Effect of change in estimate/ repayment - - - - -
Transfers to Stage 1 - - - - B
Transfers to Stage 2 - - - - R
Transfers to Stage 3 - - - R R
Impact on year end ECL of exposures - - - - -
transferred between stages during the year
Amounts written off - - - R B
ECL allowance - closing balance - - - - -

For the year ended March 31, 2023
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Simplified Total

Approach

ECL allowance - opening balance - - - - -

New assets originated - - - - -

Effect of change in estimate/ repayment - - - - -

Transfers to Stage 1 - - - - R

Transfers to Stage 2 - - - - -

Transfers to Stage 3 - - - - -

Impact on year end ECL of exposures - - - - -
transferred between stages during the year

Amounts written off - - - - .

ECL allowance - closing balance - - - - R
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AXIS FINANCE LIMITED
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in rupees lakhs, except per share data and as stated otherwise)

32. Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Within 12 Months | After 12 Months I Total Within 12 Months | After 12 Months Total

ASSETS
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 60,703.63 - 60,703.63 75,516.06 - 75,516.06
Receivables 759.27 - 759.27 13.88 - 13.88
Loans 8,74,660.54 21,61,016.95 30,35,677.49 4,65,996.09 17,34,628.87 22,00,624.96
Investments 58,099.81 96,716.47 1,54,816.28 51,018.86 39,913.73 90,932.59
Other financial assets 6,191.61 11,177.08 17,368.69 5,319.01 8,311.23 13,630.24
Sub-total-Financial assets 10,00,414.86 22,68,910.50 32,69,325.36 5,97,863.90 17,82,853.83 23,80,717.73
Non-Financial Assets
Current Tax Assets (net) - 5,018.65 5,018.65 - 4,427.73 4,427.73
Deferred Tax Assets (net) - 10,265.21 10,265.21 - 7,972.24 7,972.24
Property, plant and equipment - 813.28 813.28 - 612.89 612.89
Intangible assets under development - 102.45 102.45 - 13.44 13.44
Other Intangible Assets - 1,391.92 1,391.92 - 1,375.47 1,375.47
Right-of-use assets - 2,113.36 2,113.36 - 1,584.80 1,584.80
Other non-financial assets 626.56 552.19 1,178.75 322.88 660.49 983.37
Sub-total-Non-financial assets 626.56 20,257.06 20,883.62 322.88 16,647.06 16,969.94
Total - Assets 10,01,041.42 22,89,167.56 32,90,208.98 5,98,186.78 17,99,500.89 23,97,687.67
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Financial Liabilities
Payables

a) total outstanding dues to micro 274.38 - 274.38 269.47 - 269.47
and small enterprises

b) total outstanding dues of 4,556.20 - 4,556.20 3,589.79 - 3,589.79
creditors other than micro and small
enterprises
Debt securities 4,40,583.35 7,69,065.91 12,09,649.26 3,06,626.95 4,89,728.50 7,96,355.45
Borrowings (Other than debt 4,05,557.11 9,35,195.08 13,40,752.19 2,39,075.88 8,11,731.46 10,50,807.34
securities)
Subordinated Liabilities - 2,43,907.32 2,43,907.32 - 1,53,020.77 1,53,020.77
Lease Liabilities 842.58 1,290.00 2,132.58 764.79 893.73 1,658.52
Other financial liabilities 75,848.97 - 75,848.97 70,668.81 - 70,668.81
Sub-total-Financial liabilities 9,27,662.59 19,49,458.31 28,77,120.90 6,20,995.69 14,55,374.46 20,76,370.15
Non-Financial liabilities
Current tax liabilities (net) 604.45 501.93 1,106.38 - 326.90 326.90
Provisions 3,713.90 - 3,713.90 2,928.78 - 2,928.78
Other non-financial liabilities 1,403.29 - 1,403.29 904.75 - 904.75
Sub-total-Non-financial liabilities 5,721.64 501.93 6,223.57 3,833.53 326.90 4,160.43
Total Liablities 9,33,384.23 19,49,960.24 28,83,344.47 6,24,829.22 14,55,701.36 20,80,530.58

Note: The Company is having undrawn commitment bank lines as on reporting date which is amounting to X 2,05,000 Lakhs has not been considered in the

above bucketing. (March 31, 2023 : X 127,500 lakhs)

s
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The Company is obligated under various capital contracts. Capital contracts are work/purchase orders of a capital nature, which have been committed. Estimated amounts of contracts
remaining to be executed on intangible assets aggregated to X 1,165.66 lakhs at March 31, 2024 (March 31, 2023: Gross — X417.47 lakhs)

Various tax related legal proceedings are pending against the Company at various levels of appeal either with the tax authorities or in the courts. Where after considering all available
information in the opinion of management a Hability requires accrual, the Company accrues such liability. Where such proceedings are sufficiently advanced to enable management to
assess that a liability exists and are subject to reasonable estimation, management records its best estimate of such liability. Where a reasonable range of potential outcomes is estimated,
management records its best estimate, or in the absence of a basis for selecting a specific estimate within a range, management records a liability no less than the lower end of the
estimated range. The contested tax demands are adjusted by the tax authorities against refunds due to the Company on favorable resolution of earlier year’s appeals/completion of
assessments or paid. The payment/adjustment does not prejudice the outcome of the appeals filed by the Company. The advance tax payments are recorded as advance tax payments.

At March 31, 2024, the Company has assessed its contingent tax liability at an aggregate amount of X 742.61 lakhs pertaining to income tax demands by the Government of India’s tax
authorities for past years (March 31, 2023: ¥ 742.61 lakhs). Based on consultation with counsel and favorable decisions in the Company’s own or other cases, the management believes
that the tax authorities are not likely to be able to substantiate their tax assessments and accordingly, has not provided for these tax demands at March 31, 2024.

The key disputed subject matter are detailed below:

a. Income tax deduction under section 80G on account of CSR expenditure.

b. Disallowance of Depreciation expenses on software.

There are two cases against the Company which have not been acknowledged as debt, which is amounting to X 160 Lakhs Both of these cases have been filed by the customer on account of

refund of prepayment charges.

Basic and Diluted Earnings per share (EPS) computed in accordance with Ind AS 33 - 'Earnings per share'.

Particulars For the year ended for the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Basic
Profit after tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss A 59,720.07 57,910.15
Weighted Average Number of Shares B 60,16,63,414 57,22,12,048
Face value per share 10 10
Basic Earnings per share A/B 9.93 10.12
Diluted
Adjusted Profit after tax C 59,720.07 57,810.15
Weighted Average Number of Shares D 60,16,63,414 57,22,12,048
Face value per share 10 10
Diluted Earnings per share c/D 9,93 10.12

Related Parties disclosure:
Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 24 — "Related Party Disclosures™:
List of Related Parties:-
Holding Company
Axis Bank Limited ("ABL')

Fellow subsidiary
Axis Securities Limited {'ASL'")
Axis Mutual Fund Trustee Limited ('AMFTL')
Axis Trustee Services Limited {'ATSL')
Axis Asset Management Company Limited ('AAMCL')
Axis Bank U.K. Limited ("ABUKL'}
Axis Capital Limited {'ACL"}
A. Treds Limited ('ATLY)
Freecharge Payment Technologies Private Limited {'FPTPL')

Subsidiary of Fellow subsidiary companies
Axis Capital USA LLC {subsidiary of Axis Capital Ltd.)

Others
Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC) {(Promoter of Holding Company)
Max Life Insurance Company Ltd. {Associate of Holding Company)
|DBI Bank ( Subsidiary of Promoter)
Delhivery Limited (Company in which Director of holding company is interested)
Mr. Rakesh Radhakrishan Makhija (Director of holding company)

Key management personnel
Bipin Kumar Saraf (Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer)
8iju Radhakrishnan Pillai (Wholetime Director)
Amith lyer {Chief Financial Officer)
Rajneesh Kumar (Company Secretary)
Amitabh Chaudhry {Chairman)
Deepak Maheshwari {Director)
U, B. Pravin Rao (Director)
K.Narasimha Murthy {Director)
Pallavi Kanchan (Director)
Babu Rao Busi (Director)




AXIS FINANCE LIMITED
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in rupees lakhs, except per share data and as stated otherwise)

Relatives of KMP
Preeti Chaudhry (Relative of KMP)
Anagh Chaudhry {Relative of KMP)
Aruj Chaudhry (Relative of KMP)
Aryan Chaudhry {Relative of KMP)
Chhavi Kharb (Relative of KMP)
Om Singh Chaudhry (Relative of KMP)
Kusum Chaudhry (Relative of KMP)
Rajul Parekh (Relative of KMP)
Ashok Kharb( Relative of KMP)
Adhvay lyer (Relative of KMP)
Arnav lyer (Relative of KMP)
Avinash lyer (Relative of KMP)
Ganga Rangan {Relative of KMP)
Kastoori Rangan (Relative of KMP}
Kavitha lyer {Relative of KMP)
Baburaj Pillai (Relative of KMP)
Balanand Pillai (Relative of KMP)
P. Radhakrishnan Pillai (Relative of KMP)
Sanjana Pillai (Relative of KMP)
Savithri Pillai (Relative of KMP)
Shobha Pillai (Relative of KMP})
Shreyas Pillai (Relative of KMP)
Mr. Bishwanath Saraf (Relative of KMP)
Mr. Bikash Kumar Saraf {Relative of KMP)
Mr. Monish Saraf (Relative of KMP)
Mrs. Mallika Saraf (Relative of KMP)
Mrs. Sushila Saraf (Relative of KMP)
Ms. Deepa Saraf (Relative of KMP)
Alka Maheswari (Relative of KMP)
Neil Maheshwari (Relative of KMP)
Rochan Maheshwari {Relative of KMP)
Seema Baldua (Relative of KMP)
Smita Vahadane {Relative of KMP)
Aadya Sharma (Relative of KMP)
Akshar Sharma (Relative of KMP)
Asha Devi (Relative of KMP)
Bachchoo Narain (Relative of KMP)
Rajesh Kumar (Relative of KMP)
Rajshree (Relative of KMP})
Sangeeta Singh (Relative of KMP)
Sunita Sharma (Relative of KMP)
Medha Rao (Relative of KMP)
NagarathnaPravin Rao (Relative of KMP)
Poornima Rao (Relative of KMP)
Prajwal Rao (Relative of KMP)
SumatiPrabhakar Rao (Relative of KMP)
U. B. Prashantha Rao (Relative of KMP)
Smt K Lalitha (Relative of KMP)
K Sree Charan {Relative of KMP)
Mrs. N Bhavya Pavani (Relative of KMP)
K Yasaswini (Relative of KMP)
G Lakshmi Narasimha, RS (Relative of KMP)
Mr. K Hari Kumar {Relative of KMP)
Mr. K Krishna (Relative of KIMP)
Smt. K. Vatsalya (Relative of KMP)
Aditya Narain (Relative of KMP)
GK Kanchan (Relative of KMP)
Pushplata Kanchan (Relative of KMP)
Raag Narain (Relative of KMP)
Malhar Narain (Relative of KMP)
Madhurima Astana (Relative of KMP)
Busi Ashish (Relative of KMP)
Busi Prasad Babu {Relative of KMP)
Busi Pratik (Relative of KMP)
Busi Sarada {Relative of KMP}
Busi Susheela (Relative of KMP}
Dr Suchitra Manjula (Relative of KMP)

Companies in which KMPs having significant interest
Mr. Bipin Kumar Saraf HUF (Company/Firm in which director is interested)
DDMS Simulations Software Consultants Private Limited (Company/Firm in which director is interested)
Indegene Private Limited (Company/Firm in which director is interested)
Narshmha Murthy & Co Cost accountant (Company/Firm in which director is interested)
Karta Initiatiative India Foundation (Company/Firm in which director is interested)
Col Capital{Company/Firm in which director is interested)
GENBA Next Technologies Private Limited (Company/Firm in which director is interested)
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Related Parties disclosure:
Transactions with related parties

Nature of transactions Fellow
Holding S.ubsidi'ary Key
Company mc.lu.dmg Management Total
subsidiary of Personnel
fellow subsidiary
Capital Receipts and Payments
Capital Infusion including Securities Premium (ABL) 30,086.99 - - 30,086.99
(39,943.18) {-) () (39,943.18)
Non-Convertible Debentures (ABL) 46,648.14 - - 46,648.14
(8,500.00) {-) {-) (8,500.00)
Transactions
Rent paid (ABL) 247.82 . - 247.82
(246.59) () () (246.59)
Car Parking Rent (ABL) 0.35 - - 0.35
(1.40) () ) (1.40)
Bank charges (ABL) 18.46 - - 18.46
(11.37) ) (-} (11.37)
NACH charges (ABL) 45.49 - - 45.49
(27.02) ) ) (27.02)
Interest paid on borrowings (ABL) 3,638.80 - - 3,638.80
(3,549.45) () ) (3,549.45)
Interest paid on borrowings (IDBI) - 4,247.65 - 4,247.65
) ) ) ()
Interest paid on Non-Convertible Debentures (ABL) 3,053.75 - - 3,053.75
(3,053.75) {-) {-) {3,053.75)
Demat Charges (ASL} - 0.02 - 0.02
{-) {0.01) (-) (0.01)
Demat Charges (ABL) - - - -
(1.39) {-) {-) (1.39)
CP Issue Expenses { ASL) - 0.52 0.52
) ) ) )
IPA commission charges paid (ABL} 5.00 - - 5.00
(2.00) ) 8 (2.00)
Service charges other —IT Service fees (ABL) 155.20 - - 155.20
(88.93) (-) (-) {88.93)
Treps Charges (ABL) 3.09 - - 3.09
(3.00) ) ) (3.00)
Royalty Charges (ABL) 460.00 - - 460.00
(348.47) {-) (-) (348.47)
NCD Issue Expenses{ABL) 32.25 - - 32.25
(5.00) (-) {-) (5.00)
Brokerage paid (ASL) - 13.35 - 13.35
) (2.14) () (2.14)
Salary, Rent and contribution to PF (KMP) - - 1,509.58 1,509.58
{-) {-) {993.51) (993.51)
Staff Loan repayment (KMP) - - - -
{-) {-) (22.76) (22.76)
Staff Loan Interest (KMP) - - - -
) () (4.95) (4.95)
Director Sitting Fees (KMP) - - 188.00 188.00
{-} (-} (124.00) (124.00)
LIC Gratuity Premium { Life Insurance Corporation of India) - 315.78 - 315.78
) () ) )
Professional fees (ATSL) - 8.58 - 8.58
(-} (12.13) (-) {12.13)
Processing Fees (ABL) B - - -
(1,985.57) {-) (-) (1,985.57)
Considearation received from sell down including fees (ABL) - - - -
(1,10,814.40) () () (1,10,814.40)
interest on Fixed Deposits (ABL) 354.06 - - 354.06
(177.60) {-) (-) (177.60)
Reimbursement of fees (ABL) - - - -
(15.64) {-) ) (15.64)
Advertisement Income( Max Life Insurance) - 131.12 - 131.12

]
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Related Parties disclosure:
Transactions with related parties

Nature of transactions Fellow Subsidiaries Key
Holding Company |including subsidiaries Management Total
of fellow subsidiaries Personnel
Other Reimbursement of Expenses (ABL) - - - -
(128.45) (-) () (128.45)
DSA Commision {Free Charge) - 0.98 - 0.98
5] 0 0 0
ESOP cost debited & considered deemed capital contribution (ABL} 1,308.60 - - 1,308.60
(860.15) {-) (-) (860.15)
ESOP recovered (ABL) - - - -
(59.54) ) ) (59.54)
Fixed Deposit with bank (ABL) 10,000.00 - - 10,000.00
) G ¢ )
Closing Balance/Qutstanding Balances as on 31st March
Share Capital (ABL) 62,706.38 - - 62,706.38
(59,081.39) () (-) (59,081.39)
Current Account Balance (ABL) 18,496.43 - - 18,496.43
{11,943.55) {-) {-) (11,943.55)
Overdraft/Term Loan Account Balance (ABL) 31,779.85 - - 31,779.85
(58,571.45) {-) {-) (58,571.45)
Overdraft/Term Loan Account Balance { IDBI BANK) - 50,000.00 - 50,000.00
%) 3] &) )
Royalty Charges Payable (ABL) 120.00 - - 120.00
(116.61) {-) {-) {116.61)
Non-Convertible Debentures (ABL) 12,000.00 - - 20,040.00
(42,500.00) () () (42,500.00)
Non-Convertible Debentures (Others) - 7,600.00 - 7,600.00
) ) ) )
Sundry Receivables (ABL} - - - -
(3.86) ) ) (3.86)
Interest on Fixed Deposits {ABL) 2.34 - - 2.34
Professional fees (ATSL) - 0.81 - 0.81
) ) ) ¢
CP Issue Expenses {ASL) - 0.55 {-) 0.55
) ) ) )
Fixed Deposit with bank (ABL) 10,000.00 - - 10,000.00
) ) ) )
Staff Loan given (KMP) - - 112.53 112.53
{-) (-} (119.90) (119.90)

Note: -

1. The remuneration to the key managerial person does not include provisions towards bonus and gratuity and other benefits as they are determined on actuarial basis for the Company as

a whole.
2. Figures in bracket pertain to previous year.

3. Transactions shown above are excluding Goods & Services Tax.
4. Above transactions are based on contractual cash flow basis.

Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company — Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023, as amended from time to time - Loans to Senior Officers

Particulars

Qutstanding as at 31
March, 2024

Outstanding as at 31
March, 2023

Loan to Senior officers
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Employee Benefits
a) Defined contribution plan {Provident fund)

Amount of Xin lakhs 654.50 (Previous Year ¥ 519.31) is recognised as expenses and included in Note 27 of “Employee Benefits expenses” in Statement of Profit and

b) Defined benefit plan (Gratuity)

The Company provides for the gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible emplyees. The plan provides for lumpsump payments to employees upon
death while in the employment or on separation from employment after serving for the stipulated period mentioned under the Payment of Gratuity Act 1972. The
Company makes the contriubtion to the gratuity scheme administered by the Life Insurance Corporation of India through its gratuity fund.

The Company has invested fund in New Group Gratuity Cash Accumulation Plan with Life Insurance Corporation of India.

1) Amount recognized in employee cost:

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Current service cost 118.91 130.27
Interest cost on benefit obligation 45.58 39.15
Expected return on plan assets (36.11) (24.67)
Past service cost - 172.06
Transferred from group Company - -
Net benefit expense/{income) 128.38 316.81

2) Amount recognized in Other Comprehensive Income {OC)):

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

Net actuarial {gain)/loss recognized in the year 119.58 (90.75)
Return on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest Income 12.15 (100.09)
Net benefit (income)/expense for the year recognized in OCI 131.73 {190.84)

3) Amount recognized in Balance Sheet:

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

Projected benefit obligation (894.28) (610.17)
Fair value of plan assets 788.45 483.39
Funded Status (Surplus/ (Deficit)) {105.83) (126.78}
Plan assets/{liability) {105.83) (126.78)

4) Actual return on plan assets

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Expected return on plan assets 36.11 24.67
Actuarial gains/(losses) on plan assets (12.15) 100.09
Actual Return on plan assets 23.96 124.76

5) Reconciliation of balances of Defined Benefit Obligation:

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

Opening projected benefit obligation 610.17 368.00
Interest cost 45,58 39.15
Current service cost 118.91 130.27
Past Service Cost - Vested Benefit Incurred during the period - 172.06
Liability Transferred In/ 34.61 -

Benefit Paid From the Fund (34.57) (8.57)
Actuarial {gains)/losses on obligation 119.58 {90.75)
Closing projected benefit obligation 894.28 610.17

6) Projected Benefits Payable in Future Years From the Date of Reporting:

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

1st Following Year 17.14 27.23
2nd Following Year 20.78 13.17
3rd Following Year 24.52 15.79
4th Following Year 54.26 18.15
5th Following Year 45.55 38.41
Between 6 To 10 Years 411.48 338.80
10 Years and above 1,860.91 1,243.32
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Employee Benefits
7) Reconciliation of balances of the fair value of plan assets are as follows:

Particulars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Opening fair value of plan assets 483.38 340.31
Expected return 36.11 24.67
Contributions by employer 315.66 26.88
Benefits paid {(34.56) {8.57)
Actuarial gains/{losses) (12.14) 100.09
Closing fair value of plan assets 788.45 483.38

8) The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are as follows:
Gratuity

Particulars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Investment with insurer

100%

100%

The overall expected rate of return on assets is determined based on the market prices prevailing on that date, applicable to the period over which the obligation is

to be settled.
The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the Company's plans are shown below:

Particulars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Indian Assured Lives

Indian Assured Lives

Mortality rate Mortality Mortality
2012-14 (Urban) 2012-14 (Urban)
Discount rate 7.21% 7.47%
Expected rate of return on assets 7.21% 7.47%
Employee turnover
For service 2 years and below 29.00% 29.00%
For service 3 years to 4 years 11.00% 11.00%
For service 5 years and above 2.00% 2.00%
Salary escalation rate 7.00% 7.00%

The estimates of future salary increases considered in actuarial valuation, takes into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as

supply and demand in the employment market.

Amounts for the current and previous four periods are

Particulars 2023 - 2024 2022 - 2023 2021 -2022 2020 - 2021 2019 - 2020
Projected benefit obligation 894.28 610.17 368.00 267.80 197.70
Plan assets 788.45 483.38 340.31 218.21 133.18
(Surplus) /deficit 126.79 27.69 49,59

105.84

Experience adjustments on plan liabilities

64.52

Experience adjustments on plan assets - . B

Expected cash flow for the following year:

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Expected payment contibutions to the plan for next annual reporting period 282.03 245.69

The weighted average duration of defined benefit obligations as at 31 March 2024 is 12 years (Previous Year : 12 years)

9) Sensitivity Analysis

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Projected Benefit Obligation on Current Assumptions 894,28 610.17
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Discounting (91.16) (62.20)
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Discounting 107.44 73.31
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase 86.28 58.87
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase (76.72) {52.35)
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover 2.87 1.95
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover (4.16) (2.84)

The sensitivity analysis have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period,

while holding all other assumptions constant.

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the projected benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in

assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the projected benefit obligation has been calculated using the projected unit credit
method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same method as applied in calculating the projected benefit obligation as recognised in the balance sheet.

There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.
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Provisions and Contingencies
The break-up of 'Provisions and Contingencies’ shown under the head Expenditure in the Statement of Profit and Loss

is as below:

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

Provisions for impairment on Investment 192.18 62.79
Provision towards loan assets (Stage 3) (898.23) {5,600.91}
Provision made towards Income tax 21,994.68 18,638.61
Bad Debts Written off 7,832.53 4,612.28
Provision for Standard Assets (Stage 1 & Stage 2) 7,896.86 7,460.00
Leases:
A) Amounts recognised in the Balance sheet
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Gross carrying value 2,886.76 3,011.12
Addition 1,666.48 1,424.23
Deletion (52.38) {1,548.59)
Translation adjustments - -
Gross carrying value 4,500.86 2,886.76
Accumulative depreciation
Opening Balance 1,301.96 553.98
Depreciation 1,085.54 747.98
Translation adjustments - -
Closing Balance 2,387.50 1,301.96
Net carrying value 2,113.36 1,584.80

B) The following is the movement in lease liabilities during the year ended March 31, 2024

f

Particulars

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Opening Lease Liabilities 1,658.52 2,612.55
Additions/accrued 1,499.51 1,424.24
Interest on lease liabilities 160.89 113.29
Deletions (52.00) (1,667.43)
Payment towards Lease Liability {Principal & Interest) {1,134.34) (824.13)
Closing Lease Liabilities 2,132,58 1,658.52

Amounts recognised in Statement of profit and Loss during the year ended March 31, 2024

for the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 1,085.54 747.98
Interest expense on lease liabilities 160.89 113.29
Total 1,246.43 861.27

Total cash outflow for ieases:

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Total cash outflow for leases 1,134.34 824.13
Total 1,134.34 824.13
The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at March 31, on an undiscounted basis
Tenure For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Less than 1 year 846.92 764.79
1-3 years 925.85 749.94
3-5 years 359.81 143.79
More than 5 years - -
Balance as at 31 March 2,132,58 1,658.52

While measuring the lease liabilities, the Company discounted lease payments using its incremental borrowings rate at average rate of 7.95% p.a. The weighted

average rate applied ranges between 7.1% p.a to 8.36% p.a.

Basis the information available there is following with Struck off Companies during the year ended March 31, 2024

Nature of transaction Balance Balance Relationship
Name of Struck off Company with struck off compan Outstanding Outstanding |with the struck
pany March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023 |off company
Amarjothi Granites India Private Loan to the party 801.59
- Customer
Limited

There were no relations and transactions thh Struck off Compames during the year ended March 31, 2023.
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Analytical Ratios

Reason for
Ratio Numerator Denominator | 31 March, 2024 | 31 March, 2023 % Variance variance {if above
25%)

Capital to risk-weighted assets ratig 6,17,112.68 32,29,598.86 19.11% 20.10% -4.94% N.A.
Tier | CRAR 4,26,674.00 32,29,598.86 13.21% 14.79% -10.67% N.A.
Tier I CRAR 1,90,438.68 32,29,598.86 5.90% 5.31% 11.05% N.A,
Debt Equity Ratio 27,94,308.77 4,06,864.51 6.87 6.31 8.84% N.A.
Liquidity Coverage Ratio 1,08,854.47 27,025.00 402.79% 598.38% -32.69% Higher HQLA
Key Ratios for the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Return on Equity Ratio 16.50% 21.15%
Net Profit Ratio 18.93% 24.89%
Return on Capital Employed 2.16% 2.76%
Revenue from contract with customers (Ind AS 115)
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Type of Services
Cheque / NACH Bouncing Charges 198.87 142.88
Pre/Part payment Charges 393.10 149.96
Foreclosure Charges 2,994.08 1,223.48
Miscellaneous fees 106.50 2,129.83
Others 1,343.77 679.68
Total 5,036.32 4,325.83
Geographical markets
India 5,036.32 4,325.83
Qutside India - -
Total 5,036.32 4,325.83
Timing of revenue recognition
Services transferred at a point in time 5,036.32 4,325.83
Services transferred over time - -
Total 5,036.32 4,325.83
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44. Risk Management
Risk Profile
The Company has operations within India. It is exposed to various kind of risks such as credit risk, liquidity risk,
market risk, operational risk and business risks. While risk is inherent to the Company’s activities, it is managed
through a comprehensive risk management framework that lays out controls in the form of risk limits and other
controls to prudently manage different risks to ensure resilience and sustainable growth. Risk management is
critical to the Company’s continuing profitability.

Risk Management Structure
The Board of Directors are responsible for the overall risk management approach and oversee the establishment,
monitoring and integration of the risk management framework within organization.

The Risk Management Committee of the Board has the responsibility for development of the risk strategy & risk
appetite and implementing principles, policies and limits approved by Board of Directors. The Committee is also
responsible for managing various risk related decisions and monitoring risk levels.

The Risk Department is responsible for monitoring compliance with risk policies and limits. Business units are
primarily responsible for management of risk in their units, including monitoring the risk of exposures against
limits and the assessment of risks of transactions. Exceptions / breach of limits are reported to the management
and the Risk Management Committee.

The Treasury Department is responsible for managing the liabilities and the overall capital structure. It is also
primarily responsible for the funding and liquidity risks.

The Risk management processes are audited annually by the internal auditors, which examine the adequacy of
the processes and compliance with the limits. The internal auditors discuss the results of all assessments with
the management. Observations and recommendations of the internal auditors are reported to the Audit
Committee of the Board.

The Company’s capital management guidelines ensure maintenance and management of prudent capital levels
to support the desired balance sheet growth and provide a cushion against unexpected losses.

Managing liquidity positions is vital for the Company’s effective operations. The management monitors the
liquidity position on an ongoing basis and also examines how liquidity requirements are likely to evolve under
different scenarios. The Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO), inter-alia comprising of Managing
Director & CEO, Chief Risk Officer and Chief Financial Officer, considers the current economic and market
environment, near-term business growth projections and long-term strategic business decisions for determining
the appropriate mix of funding sources to ensure liquidity is managed prudently.

Risk Measurement and Reporting
Monitoring and controlling risks is performed based on limits established by the Company. These limits reflect
the business strategy and market environment of the Company as well as the level of risk the Company is willing
to accept, with additional emphasis on selected sectors, liquidity position and capital adequacy position.
Information in this regard is presented to the senior management on a monthly basis and to the Risk
Management Committee of the Board on a quarterly basis.
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Excessive Risk Concentration

Concentration arises when Company has taken exposure to a number of counterparties, engaged in similar
business activities or operating in the same region or have similar features that would cause their ability to meet
contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic or other conditions. In order to avoid
excessive concentration of risk, the Company’s policies include limits / guidelines in various KPIs like product
type, geography, unsecured, capital market etc. in order to maintain a diversified portfolio. Identified
concentrations of credit risks are controlled and managed accordingly.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that the Company will incur a loss because its borrowers fail to fulfil their contractual
obligations. The Company has robust underwriting mechanism for loans and investments. It manages and
controls its credit risk by setting limits on the amount of exposure for individual counterparties & groups,
products, geographies, etc. and by monitoring exposures in relation to such limits. It actively uses collaterals to
reduce the credit risk. Credit quality review of individual exposures is undertaken for timely identification of
deterioration in creditworthiness of counterparties, including that of collaterals.

Impairment Assessment

a) Definition of Default and Cure
The Company considers a loan as defaulted and therefore classified as Stage 3 (credit impaired) for ECL
calculation in all cases when the borrower crosses 90 days past due on its contractual payments. Also, any
loan facility which has been restructured / where the Company has exercised forbearance is considered as
Stage 3.

As part of qualitative assessment of whether a customer is in default, the Company also considers other
instances that may indicate unlikeliness to pay.

An asset classified as Stage 3 when the borrower crosses 90 days past due on its contractual payments shall
be moved out from Stage 3 upon payment of all irregularities. Restructured assets shall be moved out from
Stage 3 on adherence of restructuring terms, subject to a cooling period of 1 year.

b) Probability of Default (PD) Estimation
It is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon. In order to estimate / source the PDs,
studies on defaults by external rating agencies available in public domain and experience of the both Parent
(Axis Bank Limited) and Axis Finance Limited have been taken into account.

¢) Exposure at Default (EAD)
EAD is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date, taking into account expected changes in the
exposure after the reporting date, including repayment of principal and interest, whether contractually
scheduled or otherwise and expected drawdown on committed loan facilities and accrued interest from
missed payments. ' o
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d) Loss Given Default (LGD)
LGD is an estimate of the loss arising in case where a default occurs. It is based on the difference between
the contractual cash flows due and those that the Company would expect to receive, including from the
realization of any collateral.

Significant Increase in Credit Risk

The Company considers an exposure to have significantly increase in credit risk when the borrower becomes 30
days past due on its contractual payments. Further, a borrower who was credit impaired during the past 6
months preceding the reporting date shall also be classified as exhibiting significant increase in credit risk.

As part of qualitative assessment of whether a customer is exhibiting significant increase in credit risk, the
Company also considers other instances that may indicate that there has been a significant deterioration in the
customer’s ability and willingness to pay.

Grouping Financial Assets
The Company calculates Expected Credit Loss (ECL) for loan assets at an individual client basis, based on the
nature of the loan product. ECL for other assets and all Stage 3 assets is also calculated on an individual basis.

Analysis of Risk Concentration

The Company’s risk concentration is managed by client / counterparty limits. The maximum credit exposure to
any client or counterparty was X31,500.00* lakhs as at March 31, 2024 (March 31, 2023 %31,500.00 lakhs).
Total exposure to 20 largest customers constituted 13.31% of the Company’s total credit exposure as at March
31, 2024.

*Exposure include interest as well

Credit Risk Exposure Analysis at Amortized Cost

(X In lakhs)
As at March 31, 2024
Particulars Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Wholesale (A) 16,07,256.35 21,028.14 5,754.12 16,34,038.61
Retail (B) 14,19,991.86 9,761.38 8,719.36 14,38,472.60
Total Loans (A+B) 30,27,248.21 30,789.52 14,473.48 30,72,511.21
Investments 1,55,182.96 - - 1,55,182.96
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Credit Risk Exposure Analysis at Amortized Cost

(X In lakhs)

As at March 31, 2023
Particulars Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Wholesale (A) 12,34,925.46 22,021.11 8,343.85 12,65,290.42
Retail (B) 9,52,995.07 6,828.71 5,345.85 9,65,169.63
Total Loans (A+B) 21,87,920.53 28,849.82 13,689.70 22,30,460.05
Investments 91,107.09 - - 91,107.09

Collateral and Other Credit Enhancements

In order to mitigate the credit risk, the Company obtains collaterals, depending upon the assessment of credit
risk at the individual loan account level. The Company has adopted guidelines for valuation and acceptability of
each type of collateral.

Collateral obtained include debentures, bonds, debt mutual fund units, real estate properties, fixed assets,
escrow of specific receivables / cash flows. The Company also obtains personal / corporate guarantees from key
promoters and parent / group companies for loans to their subsidiaries / group companies.

The management monitors the market value of collateral and additional collateral is obtained in case of a breach
in the stipulated security cover in accordance with the loan agreement.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial
liabilities. Liquidity risk arises because of the possibility that the Company might be unable to meet its payment
obligations when they fall due, as a result of mismatches in the timing of cash flows. The Company has arranged
for funding through diversified sources and adopted a policy of managing cash flows and monitoring liquidity to
limit this risk. The Company has also adopted a Contingency Funding Plan, which is tested on an annual basis
and the test results are placed before the Risk Management Committee of the Board.

Prepayment Risk

Prepayment risk is the risk that the Company will incur a financial loss because its customers repay earlier than
contracted. The Company has an option to levy a pre-payment penalty in such cases, wherever sanction terms
provide for the same.

Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes
in market variables such as interest rates and equity prices.
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The Company held Government securities as part of its Trading Portfolio during the year. The trading position is
monitored regularly by the Risk department as part of Interest Rate Risk Management and adherence to stop
loss limits is ensured.

Interest Rate Risk
The Company has set up an Earnings at Risk limit for managing the Interest Rate Risk in the
Company’s book which is monitored by the Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO)

The Gap i.e. the difference between Rate Sensitive Assets (RSA) and Rate Sensitive Liabilities (RSL) for each time
bucket upto 1 year is used as a measure of interest rate sensitivity. A Gap Report is generated by grouping rate
sensitive liabilities, assets and off-balance sheet positions into time buckets according to residual maturity or
next re-pricing period, whichever is earlier. A positive Gap indicates that RSAs are more than RSLs whereas
negative Gap indicates that RSLs are more than RSAs. The following table indicates the sensitivity of interest rate
shocks to the Net Interest Income as per Earnings at Risk model that considers AFL’s Rate sensitive assets and
Rate sensitive liabilities upto 1 year time buckets:

Increase / Decrease Sensitivity of Sensitivity of
in basis points Net Interest Income Net Interest Income
2023-24 2022-23
+/- 20 bps -%1,926 lakhs / + X1,926 lakhs - %961 lakhs / + X961 lakhs
+/- 30 bps -X2,889 lakhs / + %2,889 lakhs -X1,442 lakhs / + X1,442 lakhs

Foreign Currency Risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange
rates. Foreign currency risk for the Company arises majorly on account of foreign currency borrowings. The
Company manages this foreign currency risk by entering into cross currency swaps and forward contract. When
a derivative is entered into for the purpose of being as hedge, the Company negotiates the terms of those
derivatives to match with the terms of the hedge exposure. The Company’s policy is to fully hedge its foreign
currency borrowings at the time of drawdown and remain so till repayment. The Company holds derivative
financial instruments such as cross currency interest rate swap to mitigate risk of changes in exchange rate in
foreign currency and floating interest rate. The counterparty for these contracts is generally a bank. These
derivative financial instruments are valued based on quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active
markets or inputs that are directly or indirectly observable in market place.

Operational Risk
Operational risk is the risk of loss arising from inadequate or failed internal processes, systems, people or
external events. Operational risk can lead to financial and reputational loss or have legal or regulatory
implications when controls fail to operate effectively. The Company cannot expect to eliminate all operational
risks. However, it manages these risks through a control framework. Controls include defined process and
framework across all units, system access, authorization and reconciliation procedures and assessment
processes such as the use of internal audit and concurrent audit.
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Impairment of Financial Assets
The Company records allowance for expected credit losses (ECL) for all loans and debt investments, together
with loan commitments to customers.

The ECL allowance is based on the credit losses expected to arise over the life of the asset, unless there has been
no significant increase in credit risk since origination, in which case the allowance is based on the 12 months’
expected credit loss. Both life time expected credit loss and 12 months’ expected credit loss are calculated on
individual loan / instrument basis.

At the end of each reporting period, the Company performs an assessment of whether the loan’s / investment’s
credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition by considering the change in the risk of default
occurring over the remaining life of the asset.

Based on the above, the Company categorizes its loans into Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3 as under:

Stage 1: When loans are first recognized, the Company recognizes an allowance based on 12 months’ expected
credit loss. Stage 1 loans also include facilities where the credit risk has improved and the loan has been re-
classified from Stage 2.

Stage 2: When a loan has shown significant increase in credit risk since origination, the Company records an
allowance for the life time expected credit loss. Stage 2 loans also include facilities where the credit risk has
improved and the loan has been re-classified from Stage 3.

Stage 3: When a loan is credit impaired, the Company records an allowance for the life time expected credit loss.

Calculation of Expected Credit Losses (ECL)

The Company calculates ECL to measure the expected cash shortfall, discounted at the Effective Interest Rate
(EIR). Expected cash shortfall is the difference between the cash flows that are contractually due to the Company
and cash flows that the Company expects to receive.

Key elements considered for ECL calculation are as under:

Probability of Default (PD): It is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon. In order to
estimate the PDs, studies on defaults available in public domain and experience of the Parent Company (Axis
Bank Limited) have been taken into account.

Exposure at Default (EAD): EAD is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date, taking into account
expected changes in the exposure after the reporting date, including repayment of principal and interest,
whether contractually scheduled or otherwise and expected drawdown on committed loan facilities and accrued
interest from missed payments

Loss Given Default (LGD): LGD is an estimate of the loss arising in case where a default occurs. It is based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due and those that the Company would expect to receive,
including from the realization of any security. ey
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ECL is calculated as under:

Stage 1: The Company calculates the 12 months’ ECL based on the expectation of a default occurring within 12
months from the reporting date. The expected 12-month PD is applied to the EAD and multiplied by the expected
LGD and discounted at the EIR.

Stage 2: When a loan has shown significant increase in credit risk since origination, the Company records an
allowance for life time expected credit loss.

Stage 3: For loans considered credit impaired, life time ECL is recognized.

The Company also adopts a loss- based approach to calculate ECL for assets predominantly secured by listed /
quoted financial securities.

Forward Looking Information

In computation of ECL, the Company considers historical loss rates on the portfolio over a period which covers
most external factors such as equity prices, property prices, collateral valuations, interest rates, etc. The
management believes that there is no correlation directly with external events on loan repayment by the
customers. Accordingly, no analysis has been performed.

Collateral Valuation
To mitigate the credit risk on loans / investments, the Company seeks to use collateral, where possible. The
collateral may be in the form of receivables, mutual funds, bonds, real estate and guarantees.

Fair value of the collateral affects the calculation of ECL. It is assessed at inception of the loan and re-assessed
every 3 years as per internal guidelines. However, quoted financial securities are valued daily.

Write-offs

Financial assets are written-off either partially or in their entirety when the Company has stopped pursuing
recovery or where the chances of recovery are low. The Company has written-off loans to the extent of X
7,832.53 lakhs during the year (Previous Year: X 4,612.28).




AXIS FINANCE LIMITED
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in rupees lakhs, except per share data and as stated otherwise)

Disclosure on Liquidity Risk as at March 31, 2024
Disclosure on Liquidity Risk, as per extant RBI guidelines on Liquidity Risk Management Framework for Non-

Banking Financial Companies as at March 31, 2024 is as follows:

i. Funding Concentration based on Significant Counterparty:

Number of Significant Amount % of Total % of Total
Counterparties (X lakhs) Deposits Liabilities
20 19,24,102.89 N.A. 66.73%

Notes:
e Significant Counterparty - a single counterparty or group of connected or affiliated counterparties
accounting in aggregate for more than 1% of the company’s Total Liabilities.

e Total Liabilities has been computed as sum of all liabilities {Balance Sheet figure) less Equities and
Reserves/Surplus.

. Outstanding Amount have been considered in case of TLs, WC, LOC and OD facilities; Face Values has been
considered in case of CPs and NCDs

ii. Top 20 Large Deposits (amount in X lakhs and % of Total Deposits): Not Applicable

iiii. Top 10 Borrowings:
Amount (X lakhs)
15,03,662.18

% of Total Borrowings
53.81%

Note:

e Outstanding Amount have been considered in case of TLs, WC, LOC and OD facilities; Face Values has
been considered in case of CPs and NCDs

iv. Funding Concentration based on Significant Instrument/Product:
Sr. Name of the Amount (X lakhs) % of Total Liabilities
No. Instrument/Product
1 Term Loans 13,40,752.19 46.5%
2 WC/LOC/OD - 0.0%
3 CpP 1,90,851.00 6.6%
4 NCD 12,62,705.58 43.8%
27,94,308.78 96.9%
Notes:

e Significant Instrument/Product — a single instrument/product or group of similar instruments/products

which in aggregate amount to more than 1% of the company’s Total Liabilities.
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V.

vi.

e Outstanding Amount have been considered in case of TLs, WC, LOC and OD facilities; Face Values has

been considered in case of CPs and NCDs

e Total Liabilities has been computed as sum of all liabilities (Balance Sheet figure) less Equities and

Reserves/Surplus.

Stock Ratios:

Sr. Stock Ratios %

No. , ;

A) 1} | Commercial Papers as a % of Total Public Funds 6.83%
i) | Commercial Papers as a % of Total Liabilities 6.62%
1) | Commercial Papers as a % of Total Assets 5.80%

B) 1) | Non-Convertible Debentures (original maturity of less than one year) as a NIL

% of Total Public Funds

If) | Non-Convertible Debentures (original maturity of less than one year) as a
. o NIL
% of Total Liabilities

) | Non-Convertible Debentures (original maturity of less than one year) as a NIL
% of Total Assets

C) 1) | Other Short-Term Liabilities as a % of Total Public Funds 26.83%
i) | Other Short-Term Liabilities as a % of Total Liabilities 26.00%
) | Other Short-Term Liabilities as a % of Total Assets 22.78%

Notes:

Total Public Funds to be computed as Gross Total Debt (Outstanding Amounts of TLs, WC, LOC and OD
facilities and Face Values of CPs and NCDs).

Other Short-term Liabilities — Total Liabilities due within a year less CPs and NCDs (Original maturity of
less than one year) repayment due within a year.

Outstanding Amount have been considered in case of TLs, WC, LOC and OD facilities; Face Values has
been considered in case of CPs and NCDs.

Total Liabilities has been computed as sum of all liabilities {Balance Sheet figure) less Equities and
Reserves/Surplus. Total Assets taken as the Balance Sheet figure

Institutional set-up for Liquidity Risk Management:

The Board has the overall responsibility for management of liquidity risk. The Board decides the
strategy, policies and procedures to manage liquidity risk in accordance with the liquidity risk
tolerance/limits approved by it. The Risk Management Committee (RMC), which is a committee of the
Board, is responsible for evaluating the overall risks faced by AFL including liquidity risk. The meetings
of RMC are held at quarterly intervals. The Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO) is
responsible for ensuring adherence to the risk tolerance/limits set by the Board as well as
implementing the liquidity risk management strategy. The role of the ALCO with respect to liquidity
risk includes, inter alia, decision on desired maturity profile and mix of incremental assets and liabilities,
responsibilities and controls for managing liquidity risk, and overseeing the liquidity positions at an
entity level. The minutes of ALCO meetings are placed before the RMC during its quarterly meetings
for its noting. o
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Disclosure on Liquidity Risk as at March 31, 2023

Disclosure on Liquidity Risk, as per extant RBI guidelines on Liquidity Risk Management Framework for Non-
Banking Financial Companies as at March 31, 2023 is as follows:

i Funding Concentration based on Significant Counterparty:

Number of Significant Amount % of Total % of Total
Counterparties (X lakhs) Deposits Liahilities
18 15,48,020.07 N.A. 74.30%
Notes:

e Significant Counterparty - a single counterparty or group of connected or affiliated counterparties
accounting in aggregate for more than 1% of the company’s Total Liabilities.

e Total Liabilities has been computed as sum of all liabilities (Balance Sheet figure) less Equities and
Reserves/Surplus.

e Qutstanding Amount have been considered in case of TLs, WC, LOC and OD facilities; Face Values has been
considered in case of CPs and NCDs.

ii. Top 20 Large Deposits (amount in X lakhs and % of Total Deposits): Not Applicable
iii. Top 10 Borrowings:

Amount (X lakhs) % of Total Borrowings
12,35,630.57 62.93%

Note:
e«  Qutstanding Amount have been considered in case of TLs, WC, LOC and OD facilities; Face Values has
been considered in case of CPs and NCDs

iv. Funding Concentration based on Significant Instrument/Product:

Sr. Name of the Instrument/Product Amount (X lakhs) % of Total

No. Liabilities

1 Term Loans 10,50,877.27 50.4%

2 WC/LOC/OD : 0.0%

3 CP 87,700.00 4.2%

4 NCD 8,25,073.00 39.6%
Total 19,63,650.27 94.2%

Notes:
e Significant Instrument/Product — a single instrument/product or group of similar instruments/products
which in aggregate amount to more than 1% of the company’s Total Liabilities.

e Qutstanding Amount have been considered in case of TLs, WC, LOC and OD facilities; Face Values has
been considered in case of CPs and NCDs




AXIS FINANCE LIMITED

Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(All amounts are in rupees lakhs, except per share data and as stated otherwise)

e Total Liabilities has been computed as sum of all liabilities (Balance Sheet figure) less Equities and

V.

vi.

Reserves/Surplus.

Stock Ratios:
Sr.No. Stock Ratios %
A)I) | Commercial Papers as a % of Total Public Funds 4.47%
1) | Commercial Papers as a % of Total Liabilities 4.21%
) | Commercial Papers as a % of Total Assets 3.65%
B) 1) | Non-Convertible Debentures (original maturity of less than one year) as a NIL
% of Total Public Funds
1) | Non-Convertible Debentures (original maturity of less than one year) as a
0 Lipes NIL
% of Total Liabilities
i) | Non-Convertible Debentures {original maturity of less than one year) as a NIL
% of Total Assets
C) 1) | Other Short-Term Liabilities as a % of Total Public Funds 17.02%
l) | Other Short-Term Liabilities as a % of Total Liabilities 16.04%
ill) | Other Short-Term Liabilities as a % of Total Assets 13.93%
Notes:
e Total Public Funds to be computed as Gross Total Debt (Outstanding Amounts of TLs, WC, LOC and OD
facilities and Face Values of CPs and NCDs)
e Other Short-term Liabilities — Total Liabilities due within a year less CPs and NCDs (Original maturity of
less than one year) repayment due within a year
e Outstanding Amount have been considered in case of TLs, WC, LOC and OD facilities; Face Values has
been considered in case of CPs and NCDs
e Total Liabilities has been computed as sum of all liabilities (Balance Sheet figure) less Equities and
Reserves/Surplus. Total Assets taken as the Balance Sheet figure
Institutional set-up for Liquidity Risk Management:

The Board has the overall responsibility for management of liquidity risk. The Board decides the
strategy, policies and procedures to manage liquidity risk in accordance with the liquidity risk
tolerance/limits approved by it. The Risk Management Committee (RMC), which is a committee of the
Board, is responsible for evaluating the overall risks faced by AFL including liquidity risk. The meetings
of RMC are held at quarterly intervals. The Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO) is
responsible for ensuring adherence to the risk tolerance/limits set by the Board as well as
implementing the liquidity risk management strategy. The role of the ALCO with respect to liquidity

risk includes, inter alia, decision on desired maturity profile and mix of incremental assets and liabilities,
responsibilities and controls for managing liquidity risk, and overseeing the liquidity positions at an
entity level. The minutes of ALCO meetings are placed before the RMC during its quarterly meetings
for its noting.
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a7

(A)

(8)

Disclosure pursuant to RBI Notification RBI/2021-22/47 DOR.STR.REC.21/21.04.048/2021-22 dated June 4, 2021 and RBl Notification - RBI/2020-21/16
DOR.No.BP.BC/3/21.04.048/2020-21 dated August 6, 2020 amended from time to time:-
FY 2023-24
Type of borrower {A) (B) {C) {D) (E)
Exposure to accounts; Of (A), aggregate Of {A) amount | Of {A) amount paid by | Exposure to accounts
classified as debt that slipped written off the borrowers during | classified as Standard

Standard consequent| into NPA during the | during the year the year consequent to
to implementation year implementation of
of resolution plan — resolution plan —
Position as at the Position as at the end
end of the previous of this year March 31,
year March 31, 2023 2024
(A)*
Personal Loans 306.27 127.31 - 16.54 313.86
Corporate persons 608.90 526.31 - 243.61 -
Of which, MSMEs N - - - -
Others 739.61 10.34 11.41 56.88 694.19
Total 1,654.78 663.96 11.41 317.03 1,008.05
*Amount outstanding as on March 31, 2023
FY 2022-23
Type of borrower (A) (B) {€) {D) (3]
Exposure to accounts| Of (A), aggregate Of (A} amount | Of (A} amount paid by| Exposure to accounts
classified as debt that slipped written off the borrowers during | classified as Standard
Standard consequent] into NPA during the | during the year the year consequent to
to implementation year implementation of
of resotution plan - resolution plan —
Position as at the Position as at the end
end of the previous of this year March 31,
year March 31, 2022 2023
(A)*
Personal Loans 569.46 127.31 98.97 136.60 306.27
Corporate persons 837.39 324.69 - 82.11 608.90
Of which, MSMEs - . - - R
Others 1,737.45 31.04 - 976.99 739.61
Total 3,144.30 483.04 98.97 1,195.70 1,654.78
*Amount outstanding as on March 31, 2022
Disclosure pursuant to RBI Circular - RBI/DOR/2021-22/86/DOR.STR.REC.51/21.04.048/2021-22 dated September 24, 2021
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
To Banks To Others Total* To Banks To Others Total
Number of loans sold 5,564 1,555 7,119 15,067 1,916 16,983
Aggregate amount (X in Lakhs) 1,15,893.07 1,10,952.25 2,26,845.32 2,92,842.76 34,415.34 3,27,258.10
Sale consideration (X in Lakhs) 1,15,893.07 1,10,952.25 2,26,845.32 2,94,800.58 34,415.34 3,29,215.92
Number of transactions 9 10 19 37 6 43
Weighted average maturity (remaining) 166.38 185.7 175.83 124.72 112.48 122.70
Weighted average holding period (after 13.42 12.37 12.90 10.87 10.98 10.88
origination)
Retention of beneficial economic interest 10% 17% 12% 0 to 10% 10to 53% 0 to 53%)
{average)
Coverage of tangible security coverage 100% to 167% 100% to 412% 100% to 412% 100% to 300% 100% to 300% 100% to 300%
Rating wise distribution of rated loans N.A N.A N.A | BBB-, BBB, A-, A, BBB-, A-, A BBB-, BBB, A-, A, A+
A+
Number of instances (transactions) where NiL NIL NiL NIL NiL NIL
transferor has agreed to replace the transferred
Number of transferred loans replaced N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A
* Excluding deal under co-lending arrangement of X 3,404.90 (lakhs).
a) The Company has not transferred any non-performing assets {NPAs).
b) The Company has not transferred any Special Mention Account (SMA) and loan in default.
c) The Company has not acquired any loans in default or not in default through assignment.
d) The Company has not acquired any stressed loan.
Pool acquired (not in default) through assignment during year ended 31st March 2024
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Number of loans acquired 14,790 41
Aggregate amount (Rs in Lakhs) 40,443.34 3,050.00
Sale consideration (Rs in Lakhs}) 40,443.34 3,050.00
Number of transactions 11 1.00
Weighted average maturity in months (remaining) 72.33 92.96
Weighted average holding period in months (after origination) 13.61 25.96
Retention of beneficial economic interest (average) 10% 10%
Coverage of tangible security coverage 100% 100%
Rating wise distribution of rated loans NLA. N.A.
Number of instances (transactions) where transferor has agreed to replace the transferred loans NIL NiL

Number of transferred loans replaced
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Information related to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (Act) has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of
information available with the Company. There is an outstanding balance of 274,38 lakhs due to such parties at year end. (March 31, 2023 X 269.47 Lakhs).

Details of dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
As per the confirmation received from the parties following is the status of MSME parties.

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
The Principal amount remaining unpaid at the end of the year {Refer note 1 below) 274.38 269.47
The Interest Amount remaining unpaid at the end of the year - -
Interest paid along with amount of payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day : )
Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay on payments made beyond the appointed day
Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid - -
Further interest due and payable even in the succeeding years, untii such date when the interest due as above are actually paid to the ) )
small enterprises

274.38 269.47

Note 1) Includes unbilled amount of X 274.38 lakhs (March 31, 2023 : X 269.47 lakhs)

Capital to Risk-Asset Ratio {CRAR)
1. The primary objectives of the Company’s capital management policy is to ensure that the Company complies with RBI norms on capital adequacy requirements and maintains healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and to maximise shareholder value.

2. The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it according to changes in economic and risk conditions and regulatory requirements. in order to maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue capital securities. No changes have been

made to the objectives, policies and processes from the previous years. However, they are under constant review by the Board.

3. Tier | Capital consists of share capital, securities premium, retained earnings including current year profit less dividend distribution and reduced by deferred expenses, deferred taxes

and intangible assets.
4. Tier [l Capital consists of impairment provisions on financial instruments (assets) and subordinate debt.
5. Aggregate risk weighted assets:

Under RBI guidelines, the degree of credit risk expressed as percentage weightage have been assigned to each of the on-balance sheet assets and off-balance sheet assets. Hence the
value of each of the on-balance sheet assets and off-balance sheet assets required to be multiplied by the relevant risk weight to arrive at risk adjusted value of assets. The aggregate

shall be taken into account for reckoning the minimum capital ratio.

6. The Company’s capital adequacy ratio, calculated in accordance with the Reserve Bank of India guidelines and disclosed using ind-AS terminology, is as follows:

Capital to Risk-Asset Ratio (CRAR)

. As at As at
Particulars
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
CRAR- Tier [ Capital 4,26,674.00 3,29,002.72
CRAR- Tier [t Capital 1,90,438.68 1,18,161.19
Total Capital 6,17,112.68 4,47,163.91
CRAR (%) 19.11% 20.10%
CRAR- Tier | Capital {%) 13.21% 14.79%
CRAR- Tier H Capital (%) 5.90% 5.31%
Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier-If Capital 82,500.00 30,000.00
Percentage of the amount of PDI of the amount of its Tier | Capital 14.85% 15.00%
Amount raised by issue of Perpetual Debt Instruments 6,500.00 22,500.00
Exposure* to Real Estate Sector
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
i) Direct exposure
a) Residential Mortgages —
Lending full d b t idential ty that i i i the b thati ted. E id
en Img ully secured by mor gages_onv residential property that is or will be occupied by the borrower or that is rented. Exposure wou 9,22,795.68 5,10,413.29
also include non-fund based {NFB) limits.
b) Commercial Real Estate —
Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real estate (office buildings, retail space, multipurpose commercial premises, muitifamily
residential buildings, multi tenanted commercial premises, industrial or warehouse space, hotels, land acquisition, development and 8,55,950.37 4,74,006.96
construction, etc.). Exposure would also include non-fund based (NFB) limits.
c) Investments in Mortgage-Backed Securities (MBS) and other securitized exposures —
i. Residential - -
ii. Commercial Real Estate - -
it} Indirect Exposure
Fund based and non-fund-based exposures on National Housing Bank and Housing Finance Companies. i
Total Exposure to Real Estate Sector 17,78,746.05 9,84,420.85

* As per RB! Master Circular DBR.No.Dir.BC.12/13.03.00/2015-16 read with circular DOR.CRE.REC.N0.60/03.10.001/2021-22 dated October 22, 2021, Exposure includes credit exposure
(funded and non-funded credit limits) and investment exposure (including underwriting and similar commitments). The sanctioned limits or outstandings, whichever are higher, has been
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Exposure* to Capital Market

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
i) Direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible debentures and units of equity oriented mutual funds the corpus of 4,862.00 -
which is not exclusively invested in corporate debt
il) Advances against shares / bonds / debentures or other securities or on clean basis to individuals for investment in shares {including 3,775.00 738.08
{POs / ESOPs), convertible bonds, convertible debentures, and units of equity oriented mutual funds
iii} Advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual - -
funds are taken as primary security
iv) Advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the collateral security of shares or convertible bonds or convertible - -
debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds i.e. where the primary security other than shares / convertible bonds / convertible
debentures / units of equity oriented mutual funds does not fully cover the advances
v) Secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and guarantees issued on behalf of stockbrokers and market makers - 888.65
vi} Loans sanctioned to corporates against the security of shares / bonds / debentures or other securities or on clean basis for meeting - -
promoter’s contribution to the equity of new companies in anticipation of raising resources
vii) Bridge loans to companies against expected equity flows / issues - -
viii} Underwriting commitments taken up by the NBFCs in respect of primary issue of shares or convertible bonds or convertible - -
ix) Financing to stockbrokers for margin trading - -
X} All exposures to Alternative Investment Funds: - -
i) Category | - -
ii} Category Il - -
(iil) Category Il - -
Total Exposure to Capital Market 8,637.00 1,626.73

* As per RBI Master Circular DBR.No.Dir.BC.12/13.03.00/2015-16, Exposure includes credit exposure (funded and non-funded credit limits) and investment exposure (including
underwriting and similar commitments). The sanctioned limits or outstandings, whichever are higher, has been reckoned for arriving at the exposure limit.

During the year, management has detected and reported certain accounts as frauds amounting to % 221.53 lakhs (March 31, 2023 : X 28.39 lakhs).
Certain accounts with balances of X 78.64 lakhs have been writtwn off based on the management's judgement of recoverability.
The balance amount of X 142.89 lakhs includes an amount of X 65.01 lakhs {including off Balance Sheet}, which pertains to pools sold through the direct assignment route prior to the

detection of fraud. These have been provided for according to the policy of the Company.

The Company does not have any exposure to Derivatives including Forward Rate Agreements, Interest Rate Swaps and Exchange Traded Derivatives. (Previous year: NiL for Interest Rate
Swaps and Exchange Traded Derivatives.)

There has not been any limit exceeded for single borrower limit and group borrower limit as prescribed by the RBI based on the latest audited net owned funds.

There are no advances/projects financed by the Company wherein intangible security such as rights, licenses, authorizations etc. are charged as collateral as at March 31, 2024 & March
31,2023

During the year, the Company has received a Certificate of Registration from IRDAI to act as Corporate Agent (Composite) (registration code — CA0903) dated 05-Feb-2024. There are no
registrations obtained from other financial sector regulator (other than RBI) by the Company in previous year.

There have not been any penalties imposed by RBI and other regulators on the Company in current year and previous year.
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India Ratings and Research Private Limited, Brickwork Ratings, CRISIL Limited and CARE Ratings have accredited the following ratings to the Company for the various facilities availed by

the Company:
For the year ended 31 March 2024

Amount {Zin crores}

FACILITY CRISIL INDIA RATINGS Brickwork Ratings CARE RATINGS
CRISIL - 18206.00
Non-Convertible Debenture CRISIL AAA/STABLE IND AAA/STABLE NA CARE AAA/STABLE CARE- 23,000
INDIA RATING - 18,000
India Rating - 500
Principal protected Market linked Debentures NA IND AAA/STABLE NA CARE AAA/STABLE
CARE - 1,500
CRISIL - 3,500
. CARE-3,500
Subordinated Debt CRISIL AAA/STABLE IND AAA/STABLE NA CARE AAA/STABLE
INDIA RATING - 1,500
CRISIL - 1,200
BWR CARE-2,000
Perpetual Debt CRISIL AAA/STABLE NA CARE AAA/STABLE -
P / AAA/STABLE / BRICKWORK RATING -
300
Long Term Bank Loan NA IND AAA/STABLE NA NA India Rating 25,000
Short Term Bank Loan NA IND AL+ NA NA India Rating 2,000
Bank Lines Long Term / Short Term NA NA NA CARE AAA/STABLE/ CARE- 10,000
CARE Al+
Commercial paper CRISILAL+ IND A1+ NA NA CRISIL - 6,000
INDIA RATING - 6,000
For the year ended 31 March 2023
FACILITY .
CRISIL INDIA RATINGS Brickwork Ratings CARE RATINGS Amount (X in crores)
CRISIL - 19,300
Non-Convertible Debenture CRISIL AAA/STABLE IND AAA/STABLE NA CARE AAA/STABLE CARE- 23,000
Indian rating 16000
India Rating - 500
Principal protected Market linked Debentures NA IND AAA/STABLE NA CARE AAA/STABLE CARE-1500
CRISIL - 3,500
Subordinated Debt CRISIL AAA/STABLE IND AAA/STABLE NA CARE AAA/STABLE CARE-3,500
INDIA RATING - 1,500
CRISIL - 1,200
Perpetual Debt CRISIL AAA/STABLE NA BWR AAA/STABLE| CARE AAA/STABLE CARE-2,000
BRICKWORK RATING -
300
Long Term Bank Loan NA IND AAA/STABLE NA NA India Rating 23,000
Short Term Bank Loan NA IND A1+ NA NA India Rating 2,000
CRISIL - 6,000
Commercial paper CRISIL A1+ IND A1+ NA NA
INDIA RATING - 10,000
Bank Lines Long Term / Short Term NA NA NA Eigi ﬁﬁf/STABLE/ CARE- 10,000

There are no securitisation transactions entered into by the Company during the current year and previous year. Also, the Company does not have any securitisation exposures during

the current year and previous year.

There has not been any financing of parent Company products by the Company during the current year and previous year.

There have been no drawn down reserves during the current year and previous year.

Concentration of Advances*

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Total Advances to Twenty Largest Borrowers 4,04,306.42 3,59,291.96
Percentage of Advances to Twenty Largest Borrowers to Total Advances 13.16% 15.59%
* Advances include borrower contractual outstanding balances
Concentration of Exposures*
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Total Exposure to Twenty Largest Borrowers / customers 4,24,798.07 3,67,509.95
Percentage of Exposures to Twenty Largest Borrowers / Customers to Total Exposure of Axis Finance on borrowers / customers 12.82% 14.95%

* As per RBI Master Circular DBR.No.Dir.BC.12/13.03.00/2015-16, Exposure includes credit exposure (funded and non-funded credit limits) and investment exposure (inciuding
underwriting and similar commitments). The sanctioned limits or outstandings, whichever are higher, has been reckoned for arriving at the exposure limit.

Concentration of Non Performing Assets* (NPAs)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

4,649.52

7,412.63
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(i)

(iif)

(iv)

Sector-wise Non Performing Assets (NPAs)

% of NPAs to Total % of NPAs to Total
Advances in that Advances in that
Sectors sector sector
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Agriculture & allied activities - -
MSME - -
Corporate borrowers 0.35% 0.66%
Services - -
Unsecured personal loans 0.70% 0.68%
Auto loans - -
Other personal loans 0.57% 0.50%
Sectoral exposure
For the year ended March 31, 2024 For the year ended March 31, 2023
Sectors Total Exposure Percentage of Gross To.tal Exposure Percentage of Gross
(includes on balance NPAs to total {includes on NPAs to total
Gross NPAs . balance sheet Gross NPAs .
sheet and off-balance exposure in that exposure in that
sheet exposure) sector and off-balance sector
sheet exposure)
1. Agriculture and Allied Activities
2. Industry
i. Large 4,06,593.98 - - 1,48,951.35 - -
Others 68,697.90 - - 61,199.93 25.34 -
Total of Industry 4,75,291.88 - 0.00% 2,10,151.28 25.34 -
{i+...+Others)
3. Services
i.Other Services 4,47,589.66 195.21 - 2,21,764.05 - -
ii.Professional Services 65,241.67 1,940.81 - 72,297.85 - -
iii.Commercial Real Estate 7,19,864.91 3,813.30 - 6,18,630.83 - -
iv. NBFC's 84,985.24 - - 68,738.94 - -
Others 96,686.02 - - 44,117.53 8,585.21 -
Total of Services 14,14,367.50 5,949.32 0.42% 10,25,549.20 8,585.21 0.84%
(i+ii+...+Others)
4. Personal Loans
Others - - - - - -
Total of Personal Loans - - - - - -
(i+ii+...+Others)
5. Others, if any {please specify)
i. Housing Loans (incl. priority sector Housing) 1,98,288.16 1,984.76 - 2,59,129.39 - -
ii.Other Retail loans 11,80,647.11 6,539.41 - 5,26,358.39 - -
iii. Other Non-food Credit 2,015.29 - - 3,93,879.23 - -
Others 36,760.97 - - 1,953.15 5,079.15 -
Total of Others, if any (please specify) 14,17,711.53 8,524.17 0.60% 11,81,320.16 5,079.15 0.43%
33,07,370.91 14,473.49 0.44% 24,17,020.64 13,689.70 0.57%
Intra-group exposures
Particular As at March 31, 2024 | As at March 31, 2023
Total amount of intra-group exposures 0.00% 0.00%
Total amount of top 20 intra-group exposures 0.00% 0.00%
Percentage of intra-group exposures to total exposure of the NBFC onborrowers/customers 0.00% 0.00%
Movement of Non Performing Assets {NPAs) As at March 31, 2024 | As at March 31, 2023
Net NPAs to Net Advances (%) 0.24% 0.26%
(Net Advances include investment of amount % in lakhs (March 31, 2024 : 87,919.73 & March 31, 2023 : 39,127.90)
(Only Stage 3 ECL is considered while computing Net Advances)
Movement of NPAs (Gross) As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Opening balance 13,689.70 20,397.25
Additions during the year 8,950.45 5,977.68
Reductions during the year (8,166.67) (12,685.23)
Closing balance 14,473.48 13,689.70
Movement of NPAs {(Net) As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Opening balance 5,858.57 6,965.22
Additions during the year 4,347.32 2,119.50
Reductions during the year {2,665.29) (3,226.15)
Closing halance 7,540.60 5,858.57
Movement of Provision on NPAs (excluding provision on Standard Assets) As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Opening balance 7,831.13 13,432.03
Additions during the year 4,603.16 3,858.18
Reductions during the year {5,501.38} (9,459.08)
Closing balance 6,932.91 7,831.13
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Disclosures pursuant to Master Direction — Reserve Bank of india (Non

king Financial Cc

P

Provisions required under Income Recognition, Asset Classification and Provisioning and impairment allowances made under ind AS 109

y - Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023, as amended from time to time,

FY 2023-24

Asset Classification as per RBI Norms

Asset classification as

Gross Carrying Amount

Loss Allowances

Net Carrying

Provisions required as

Difference between Ind

per ind AS 109 as per Ind AS (Provisions) as required] Amount per IRACP norms AS 108 provisions and
under ind AS 109* IRACP norms
(1} (2) (3) (a) (8)=(3}-(4) (6) (7) = {4)-(6)
Performing Assets
Standard Stage 1 30,27,248.21 27,527.76 29,99,720.45 12,108.99 15,418.77
Standard Stage 2 30,789.52 2,373.05 28,416.47 123.16 2,249.89
Subtotal 30,58,037.73 29,900.81 30,28,136.92 12,232.15 17,668.66
Non-Performing Assets (NPA)
Substandard Stage 3 9,329.79 4,721.55 4,608.24 932.98 3,788.57
Doubtfuf -1 Stage 3 2,314.00 623.47 1,690.53 462.80 160.67
Doubtfut - 2 Stage 3 2,013.12 1,158,89 854.23 603.94 554.95
Doubtful - 3 Stage 3 734.59 389.64 344,95 367.30 22.34
Subtotal for doubtfut 5,061.71 2,172.00 2,889.71 1,434.04 737.96
Loss Stage 3 81.98 39.36 42,62 81.98 (42.62)
Subtotal for NPA 14,473.48 6,932.91 7,540.57 2,449.00 4,483.91
Other items such as guarantees, loan commitments, Stage 1 - - - - -
etc. which are in the scope of Ind AS 109 but not Stage 2 - - . - -
covered under current Income Recognition, Asset
Classification and Provisioning {IRACP) narms
Stage 3 - - - - -
Subtotal - - - - -
Stage 1 30,27,248.21 27,527.76 29,99,720.45 12,108.99 15,418.77
Stage 2 30,789.52 2,373.05 28,416.47 123,16 2,249.89
Stage 3 14,473.48 6,932.91 7,540.57 2,449.01 4,483.91
Total 30,72,511.21 36,833.72 30,35,677.49 14,681.16 22,152.57
FY 2022-23
Asset Classification as per RBf Norms Asset classification as Gross Carrying Amount| Loss Allowances Net Carrying Provisions required as | Difference between ind

per Ind AS 109 as per ind AS {Provisions) as required{ Amount per IRACP norms AS 109 provisions and
under Ind AS 109* IRACP norms
(1 2) 3) (4] (5)=31-4) {6} () = (4)-(6)

Performing Assets
Standard Stage 1 21,87,920.49 19,461.52 21,68,458.97 8,687.29 10,774.23
Standard Stage 2 28,849.87 2,542.45 26,307.42 114.49 2,427.96
Subtotal 22,16,770.36 22,003.97 21,94,766.39 8,801.78 13,202.19
Non-Performing Assets (NPA)
Substandard Stage 3 6,298.58 4,058.12 2,240.45 629.38 3,428.74
Doubtfui - 1 Stage 3 1,048.53 624.54 423.99 209.71 414.83
Doubtful - 2 Stage 3 6,342.59 3,148.46 3,194.13 1,902.78 1,245.68
Doubtful - 3 Stage 3 - - - - -
Subtotal for doubtful 7,391.12 3,773.00 3,618.12 2,112.48 1,660.51
Loss Stage 3 - - - - -
Subtotal for NPA 13,689.70 7,831.12 5,858.57 2,741.85 5,089.25
Other items such as guarantees, loan commitments, Stage 1 - - - - -
etc. which are in the scope of Ind AS 109 but not Stage 2 N - - - _
covered under current income Recognition, Asset
Classification and Provisioning (iRACP) norms Stage 3 - - - - .
Subtotal - - . - -

Stage 1 21,87,920.49 19,461.52 21,68,458.97 8,687.29 10,774.23

Stage 2 28,849.87 2,542.45 26,307.42 114.49 2,427.96

Stage 3 13,689.68 7,831.12 5,858.57 2,741.86 5,089.25

Total 22,30,460.05 29,835.09 22,00,624.96 11,543.65 18,291.44

*While calculating ECL, the Credit conversion factor on undrawn commitment has been considered as a part of Exposure at Default.
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AXIS FINANCE LIMITED
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
{All amounts are in rupees lakhs, except per share data and as stated otherwise)

71. Liquidity Coverage Ratio {FY 2023-24)
Reserve Bank of India (RBI) had introduced Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR) (effective from December 01, 2020) as part of Liquidity Risk Management Framework
(LRMF) to ensure that a NBFC has adequate stock of unencumbered high quality liquid assets (HQLA) to survive a significant liquidity stress lasting for a period of 30
days. LCR is defined as a ratio of HQLA to the total net cash outflows over the next 30 calendar days. As on March 31, 2024, the applicable minimum LCR required to
be maintained by the Company is 85.00%.

The Company’s liquidity strategy is managed by the Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO), a management level committee. Meetings of the ALCO are held
on a monthly basis. The Risk Management Committee (RMC), a sub-committee of the Board of Directors of the Company along with Chief Risk Officer being the
permanent invitee, oversees the liquidity risk management. The minutes of RMC are placed before the the Board of Directors for noting and discussion.

During the three months ended March 31, 2024, Axis Finance Limited maintained daily average HQLA (after applicable haircut) of X 91,686.91 Lakhs against the
average HQLA requirement of X 91,970.57 Lakhs at minimum LCR requirement of 85.0%. The daily average LCR of Axis Finance Limited for the three months ended
March 31, 2024 was 284.70% (The daily average LCR of Axis Finance for the three months ended December 31, 2023 was 170.84% ). HQLA primarily includes
Government securities viz. Central and State Government securities and small portion in eligible corporate bonds with mandated haircuts.

The weighted cash outflows are primarily driven by secured funding which includes debt obligations on NCDs and bank borrowings. The total weighted cash inflows
are primarily driven by performing exposures and lines of credit from Axis Bank Limited (“Parent Company”).

Three months ended Three months ended Three months ended Three months ended
March 31, 2024 December 31, 2023 September 30, 2023 June 30, 2023
Total Total Totai Total Total Total Total Total
Unweighted | Weighted | Unweighted Weighted Unweighted Weighted | Unweighted | Weighted
Value Value Value Value Value Value Value Value

(average)* | (average)i | {average)* {average)# (average)* (average)# (average)* | (average)#

High Quality Liquid Assets

Total High Quality Liquid Assets
{HQLA) {Refer Note 1)

Cash Outflows

5 Deposits (for deposit taking . .

1 91,970.57 91,686.91 54,989.87 54,705.15 56,703.98 56,419.51 90,316.79 90,035.24

companies)
3 Unsecured wholesale funding 68,296.76 78,541.27 73,156.38 84,129.84 62,033.76 71,338.82 4,764.17 5,478.79
Secured wholesale funding 27,267.07 31,357.13 21,879.91 25,161.90 26,183.39 30,110.90 82,575.49 94,961.81

5 | Additional requirements, of which - - - - - R R R

Outflows related to derivative
{i} exposures and other collateral - - - - - - - -
requirements
Outflows related to loss of funding

(i} - - . . N - - -

on debt products

{iii) Credit and liquidity facilities - - - - - - - -
6 Other contractual funding 16,454.30] 1892245  16,339.60]  1879054|  16,85L.06|  19,378.72| 16,668.07|  19,168.28
obligations
s Other contingent funding ) ) ) ) ) ) 3 )
obligations
8 |TOTAL CASH OUTFLOWS 1,12,018.13| 1,28,820.85 1,11,375.89 1,28,082.28 1,05,068.21 1,20,828.44| 1,04,007.73| 1,19,608.88
Cash Inflows

9 |Secured lending - - - - - - - -
Inflows from fully performing

10 exposures 41,939.98 31,454.99 39,494.07 29,620.55 35,610.56 26,707.92 28,505.37 21,379.02
11 |Other cash inflows {Note 2) 2,04,909.96] 1,53,682.47 1,93,624.47| 1,45,218.35 1,26,779.24 95,084.43| 1,26,921.00 95,190.75
12 |TOTAL CASH Inflows 2,46,849.94| 1,85,137.46] 2,33,118.54| 1,74,838.90| 1,62,389.80| 1,21,792.35| 1,55,426.37} 1,16,569.77
13 [TOTALHQLA 91,970.57 91,686.91 54,989.87 54,705.15 56,703.98 56,419.51 90,316.79 90,035.24
14 |TOTAL NET CASH OUTFLOWS 28,004.53 32,205.21 27,843.97 32,020.57 26,267.05 30,207.11 26,001.93 29,902.22
15 |[LIQUIDITY COVERAGE RATIO (%) 328.41% 284.70% 197.49% 170.84% 215.87% 186.78% 347.35% 301.10%

*Unweighted values calculated as average monthly outstanding balances maturing or callable within 30 days (for inflows and outflows).

# Weighted values calculated after the application of respective stress factors on inflow (75%) and outflow (115%)

Note:

1. HQLA primarily includes Government securities viz. Central and State Government securities and small portion in eligible level 2 bonds.

2. Includes liquid fund balances.

3. The LCR requirement as per RBI Circular RBI/2019-20/88 DOR.NBFC (PD) CC. N0.102/03.10.001/2019-20 dated November 04, 2019, is applicable to the Company
from December 1, 2020.




AXIS FINANCE LIMITED
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Al amounts are in rupees lakhs, except per share data and as stated otherwise)

71. Liquidity Coverage Ratio (FY 2022-23)

Reserve Bank of India (RBI} had introduced Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR) (effective from December 01, 2020) as part of Liquidity Risk Management Framework
(LRMF) to ensure that a NBFC has adequate stock of unencumbered high quality liquid assets (HQLA) to survive a significant liquidity stress lasting for a period of 30
days. LCR is defined as a ratio of HQLA to the total net cash outflows over the next 30 calendar days. As on March 31, 2023, the applicable minimum LCR required to
be maintained by the Company is 70.00%.

The Company’s liquidity strategy is managed by the Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO), a management level committee. Meetings of the ALCO are held
on a monthly basis. The Risk Management Committee (RMC), a sub-committee of the Board of Directors of the Company along with Chief Risk Officer being the
permanent invitee, oversees the liquidity risk management. The minutes of RMC are placed before the the Board of Directors for noting and discussion.

During the three months ended March 31, 2022, Axis Finance Limited maintained daily average HQLA (after applicable haircut) of X 39,390.26 Lakhs against the
average HQLA requirement of X 10,785.98 Lakhs at minimum LCR requirement of 60.0%. The daily average LCR of Axis Finance Limited for the three months ended
March 31, 2022 was 219.12% (The daily average LCR of Axis Finance for the three months ended December 31, 2021 was 167.49% }. HQLA primarily includes
Government securities viz. Central and State Government securities and small portion in eligible corporate bonds with mandated haircuts.

The weighted cash outflows are primarily driven by secured funding which includes debt obligations on NCDs and bank borrowings. The total weighted cash inflows
are primarily driven by performing exposures and lines of credit from Axis Bank Limited {“Parent Company”).

Three months ended Three months ended Three months ended Three months ended
March 31, 2023 December 31, 2022 September 30, 2022 June 30, 2022
Total Total Total Total Total Total Total Total
Unweighted | Weighted | Unweighted Weighted Unweighted Weighted | Unweighted| Weighted
Value Value Value Value Value Value Value Value
(average)* | (average)# | (average)* {average)# {average)* (average)# | (average)* | {average)#

High Quality Liquid Assets
Total High Quality Liquid Assets

1 (HQLA) (Refer Note 1) 43,910.57 43,610.87 42,138.30 41,838.30 34,909.44 34,609.44 36,153.52 35,853.52
Cash Outflows
5 Deposits {for deposit taking ) . ) i ) B ) )
companies)
3 Unsecured wholesale funding 19,375.50 22,281.82 45,646.75 52,493.76 34,158.06 39,281.77 25,832.77 29,707.69
4 Secured wholesale funding 45,230.51 52,015.09 38,702.70 44,508.11 31,134.17 35,804.30 22,244.62 25,581.32

5 Additional requirements, of which - - - - - - - -

Outflows related to derivative
(i) exposures and other collateral - - - - - - - -
requirements
Outflows related to loss of funding

(i) on debt products ) ) ) ) i ) ) )

(ii) Credit and liquidity facilities - - - - - - - -
6 Other contractual funding 14.899.47| 17,134.39]  25218.92|  29,001.75]  14,663.47]  16,862.99| 16,908.69|  19,444.99
obligations
; Other contingent funding ) ) ) i 3 i . .
obligations
8 |TOTAL CASH OUTFLOWS 79,505.48] 91,431.30 1,09,568.37| 1,26,003.62]  79,955.70,  91,949.06] 64,986.08]  74,734.00
Cash Inflows

9 [Secured lending - - B R R R R R
Inflows from fully performing

10 exposures 27,417.80 20,563.35 50,288.61 37,716.45 30,178.65 22,633.99 24,565.34 18,424.00
11  [Other cash inflows (Note 2) 1,77,194.97| 1,32,896.23 1,70,748.05|  1,28,061.04] 1,32,301.20 99,225.90| 1,16,578.58 87,433.93
12 [TOTAL CASH Inflows 2,04,612.77| 1,53,459.58| 2,21,036.66| 1,65,777.49] 1,62,479.85| 1,21,859.89| 1,41,143.92| 1,05,857.93
13 |TOTAL HQLA 43,910.57 43,610.87 42,138.30 41,838.30 34,909.44 34,609.44 36,153.52 35,853.52
14 |TOTAL NET CASH QUTFLOWS 19,876.37 22,857.83 27,392.09 31,500.90 19,988.93 22,987.27 16,246.52 18,683.50
15 |LIQUIDITY COVERAGE RATIO (%) 220.92% 180.79% 153.83% 132.82% 174.64% 150.56% 222.53% 191.90%

*Unweighted values calculated as average monthly outstanding balances maturing or callable within 30 days (for inflows and outflows).

# Weighted values calculated after the application of respective stress factors on inflow (75%}) and outflow {115%)

Note:

1. HQLA primarily includes Government securities viz. Central and State Government securities and small portion in eligible level 2 bonds.

2. Includes liquid fund balances.

3. The LCR requirement as per RBI Circular RBI/2019-20/88 DOR.NBFC (PD} CC. No.102/03.10.001/2019-20 dated November 04, 2019, is applicable to the Company
from December 1, 2020.




AXIS FINANCE LIMITED
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
{All amounts are in rupees lakhs, except per share data and as stated otherwise)

72 Off Balance sheet SPVs: There are no Off-Balance Sheet SPVs of the Company for the current year as well as previous year.
73 Unhedged foreign currency exposure: The company does not have any unhedged foreign currency exposure as on 31 March 2024 (31 March 2023 : NIL}

74 Note on operating segment:
There is no separate reportable segment as per IND AS 108 on “Operating segment” in respect of the Company. The Company operates in single segment only. There are no operations
outside India and hence there is no external revenue or assets which require disclosure. Further, no revenue from transactions with a single external customer amounted to 10% or more
of the Company'’s total revenue in the year ended March 31, 2024 or March 31, 2023

75 Pending Litigation:
The Company’s pending litigations comprise of claims against the Company by the customers and proceedings pending with other authorities. The Company has reviewed all its pending
litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for where provisions are required and disclosed the contingent liabilities where applicable, in the financial statements. The
Company does not expect the outcome of these proceedings to have a materially adverse effect on its financial results.

76 Customer Complaints

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Complaints received by the NBFC from its customers - -
1) Number of complaints pending at beginning of the year 48 -
2) Number of comptlaints received during the year 4915 3864
3) Number of complaints disposed during the year 4843 3816
3.1) Of which, number of complaints rejected by the NBFC 322 232
4) Number of complaints pending at the end of the year 120 48
Maintainable complaints received by the NBFC from Office of Ombudsman
5) Number of maintainable complaints received by the NBFC from Office of Ombudsman 91 46
5.1) Of 5, number of complaints resolved in favour of the NBFC by Office of Ombudsman 89 44
5.2) Of 5, number of complaints resolved through conciliation/mediation/advisories issued by Office of Ombudsman 2 2
5.3) Of 5, number of complaints resolved after passing of Awards by Office of Ombudsman against the NBFC - -
6) Number of Awards unimplemented within the stipulated time {other than those appealed) - -
Top five grounds of complaints received by the Company from customers
% increase/
Nurnber of i Number of decrease in the ber of ¢ . ofs, ber of
Grounds of ¢ I (i.e. complaints relating to}) complamts. pe.ndmg complaints received numbeu: of pending at the end of | complaints pending
at the beginning of during the year complaints the year beyond 30 days
the year received over the
previous year
1 2 3 4 5 6
2023-24
Ground - 1{ Foreclosure Related) - 1373 43% 29 0
Ground - 2( Payment Related} - 300 -32% 2 2
Ground - 3 (Documents Related) - 344 -18% 7 2
Ground - 4{Refund/Waiver/Discount Related} - 187 -35% 7 2
Ground - 5 (ROI/Tenure Related} - 221 -7% 2 3
Others - 24590 -27% 73 23
Total 4915 120 32
2022-23
Ground - 1{ Foreclosure Related) - 959 136% 7 2
Ground - 2{ Payment Related) - 440 100% 10 -
Ground - 3 (Documents Related) - 419 100% 8 -
Ground - 4(Refund/Waiver/Discount Related) - 288 100% [ 1
Ground - 5 (RO#/Tenure Related) - 237 100% 4 -
Others - 1521 33 4
Total 3864 68 7

77 Code on Social Security:
The Code on Social Security, 2020 {‘Code’) relating to employee benefits during employment and post-employment benefits received Presidential assent in September 2020. The Code
has been published in the Gazette of India. However, there are few sections which were notified by the government in May 2023. The Company has assessed the impact of those sections
of the Code and concluded that it has no financial impact during the period under review.
However, the date on which the full Code will come into effect has not been notified and the final rules / interpretation have not yet been issued. The Company will assess the impact of

the Code when it comes into effect and will record any related impact in the period the Code becomes effective.

78 In terms of requirement as per RBI notification no. RBI/2019-20/170 DOR (NBFC).CC.PD.N0.109/22.10.106/2019-20 dated March 13, 2020 on implementation of Indian Accounting
Standards, Non-Banking Financial Companies (NBFCs) are required to create an impairment reserve for any shortfall in impairment allowances under Ind AS 109 and income Recognition,
Asset Classification .and Provisioning (‘IRACP’) norms (including provision on standard assets). The impairment allowances under Ind AS 109 made by the Company exceeds the total

provision required under IRACP {including standard asset provisioning), as at March 31, 2024 and accordingly, no amount is required to be transferred to impairment reserve.

79 Event after Reporting Date
Subsequent events are tracked and evaluated by the Company. There are no events / information which requires adjustment in financial statements as per Ind AS 10.

80 Change in accounting estimates during the period
During the period ended March 31, 2024, the Company has upgraded the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model used for computing the allowance of expected credit loss on the advance
portfolio of the Company, including the estimation methodology for retail stage 3 assets {secured) has been changed from PD - LGD method to estimated cash flow basis (DCF) method.
The impact of the model’s adjustment has led to lesser provision of X 2,646.78 lakhs (approx.) than it would have been under the model existing as on March 31, 2023.

81 Note on compliance with audit trail:
The Company has used accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail {edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the
year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. The audit trail feature was not enabled insofar as it relates to two appfications viz. Oracle EBS and Credence. In case of Oracle

€85, audit trail logs w.r.t. modification in banking details of vendor master were not enabled, however the same has been enabled post year end. Further, the company had used
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AXIS FINANCE LIMITED
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Schedule to the Balance Sheet of a non-deposit taking non-banking financial company
(All amounts are in rupees lakhs)

83 RBI Disclosures
Particulars Amount Amount overdue Amount Amount overdue
outstanding as at as at outstanding as at as at
March 31,2024 March 31, 2024 March 31,2023 March 31, 2023
Liabilities side :
(1) {Loans and advances availed by the non-banking financial
company inclusive of interest accrued thereon but not paid:
(a) Debentures : Secured 10,18,797.39 - 7,08,698.37 -
: Unsecured (other than falling within the 2,43,907.32 - 1,53,020.77 -
meaning of public deposits*)
(b) Deferred Credits - - - -
(c) Term Loans 13,40,752.19 - 10,50,807.34 -
{d) Inter-corporate loans and borrowing - - - -
(e) Commercial Paper 1,90,851.87 - 87,657.08 -

(f) Public Deposits*

(g) Other Loans (Bank's Line of Credit)

(2) [Break-up of (1)(f) above (Outstanding public deposits
inclusive of interest accrued thereon but not paid) :
(a) in the form of Unsecured debentures - - - -
(b) In the form of partly secured debentures i.e. debentures - - - -
where there is a shortfall in the value of security
(c) Other public deposits - - - -
Note

As defied in point xix of paragraph 3 of Chapter — 2 of Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and
Deposit taking Company {(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016.

* Disclosure is made in respect of available information

Particulars Amount Amount overdue Amount Amount overdue
outstanding as at as at outstanding as at as at
March 31,2024 March 31, 2024 March 31,2023 March 31, 2023
Assets side :
(3) |Break-up of Loans and Advances including bills receivables
[other than those included in (4) below] :
(a) Secured 25,07,944.08 5,152.71 18,34,980.85 3,027.84
{(b) Unsecured 5,64,567.13 507.90 3,95,479.21 648.05

(4)

Break up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and other assets
counting towards AFC activities

(a) Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors :

(i) Financial lease

(i) Operating lease

(b) Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors:

(i) Assets on hire

(if) Repossessed Assets

{c) Other loans counting towards AFC activities

(i) Loans where assets have been repossessed

(il Loans other than (i) above




AXIS FINANCE LIMITED
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Schedule to the Balance Sheet of a non-deposit taking non-banking financial company
(All amounts are in rupees lakhs)

83 RBI Disclosures

(5)

Break-up of Investments :

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

Current Investments :

(a) Quoted :

(i) Shares : (a) Equity

(b) Preference

ii) Debentures and Bonds

246.00

4,587.70

(
{iii) Units of mutual funds
{iv) Government Securities

61,914.64

47,391.50

{v) Others (InVIT)

5,348.59

(b} Unquoted :

(i) Shares : (a) Equity

(b} Preference

ii) Debentures and Bonds

(
(iti} Units of mutual funds
(iv) Government Securities

(v} Others

Long Term Investments :

(a) Quoted :

(i) Shares : (a) Equity

(b) Preference

ii) Debentures and Bonds

37,717.76

9,887.45

(
{iii) Units of mutual funds
(iv) Government Securities

(v) Others

(b) Unquoted :

(i) Shares : (a) Equity

(b) Preference

ii) Debentures and Bonds

49,789.90

29,240.44

iv) Government Securities

(
(iii) Units of mutual funds
(
(

v) Others

1,55,182.96

91,107.09




AXIS FINANCE LIMITED

Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Schedule to the Balance Sheet of a non-deposit taking non-banking financial company

(Al amounts are in rupees iakhs)

83 RBI Disclosures
(6) |Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in (3) and {4) above : Please see Note 1 below
Category Amount net of provisions as at March 31, 2024 Amount net of provisions as at March 31, 2023
Secured Unsecured Total Secured Unsecured Total
{a) Related Parties **
{i) Subsidiaries - - - - - -
{ii) Companies in the same group - - - - - -
(iii) Other related parties - - - - - -
{b) Other than related parties 24,85,347.72 5,50,329.77 30,35,677.49 18,11,583.51 3,89,041.45 22,00,624.96
Total 24,85,347.72 5,50,329.77 30,35,677.49 18,11,583.51 3,89,041.45 22,00,624.96
(7) [Investor group-wise classification of all investments (current and long term) in shares and securities {both quoted and unquoted): Please see note 2 below

Category

Market Value / Break
up or fair value or

Book Value {Net of
Provisions) as at

Market Value /
Break up or fair

Book Value (Net of
Provisions} as

NAV* as March 31,2024 | value or NAV* as | at March 31, 2023
at March 31, 2024 at March 31, 2023
(a) Related Parties **
(i) Subsidiaries - - - -
{ii) Companies in the same group - - - -
(iti) Other related parties - - - -
(b) Other than related parties 1,53,212.00 1,54,816.28 86,737.01 90,932.59
Total 1,53,212.00 1,54,816.28 86,737.01 90,932.59

* Disclosure is made in respect of available information
** As per Accounting Standard of ICA! {Please see Note 2)

(8

Other information

Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
(a) Gross Non-Performing Assets
(i) Related parties - -
(i) Other than related parties 14,473.48 13,689.70
(b) Net Non-Performing Assets
(i) Related parties - -
(ii) Other than related parties 7,540.60 5,858.57

{c) Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt

Notes: 1. Provisioning norms shall be applicable as prescribed in Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking
Company {Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016.
2. All Indian Accounting Standards and Guidance Notes issued by ICAl are applicable including for calculation of investments and other assets as also assets acquired in

satisfaction of debt. However, market value in respect of quoted investments and break up/fair value/NAV in respect of unquoted investments should be disclosed

irrespective of whether they are ciassified as long term or current in (5) above.

84 Ministry of Corporate Affairs {"MCA"} notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as
issued from time to time. For the year ended March 31, 2024, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards applicable to the
Company.
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